CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association
AGENDA

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
April 24, 2019 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

1. Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Accept comments from the public.
3. Approve minutes from the March 27, 2019 meeting.

CLOSED SESSION

4. The Board will go in to closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) to
confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation:

a. Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriffs Association, et al., v. Board of Retirement of
CCCERA, et al., Supreme Court of the State of California, Case No. S247095

OPEN SESSION

5. Review of Report on Liquidity Sub-Portfolio.
6. Consider and take possible action to amend the Investment Policy Statement.
7. Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Pension

Administration System Consulting Firm.

8. Death During Active Membership — Non-Service Connected Disability and Optional
Settlement 2 information.

9. Discussion concerning new board room.

10. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:

a. Annual Institutional Symposium, Dimensional Fund Advisors, May 6-8, 2019,
Charlotte, NC.

b. 2019 Investor Conference & Dinner Reception, Angelo Gordon, May 15, 2019, New
York, NY.

c. Annual Meeting & Dinner, DBL Investors, June 19, 2019, San Francisco, CA.

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




11.

d. Public Pension Investment Management Program, SACRS, July 22-24, 2019,
Berkeley, CA. (Note: Conflict with Meeting)

Miscellaneous

a. Staff Report
b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




Meeting Date
04/24/19

CONTRA
COSTA ‘ ‘ :‘ :ERA Agenda Item
COUNTY #3

Employees’ Retirement Association
MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
March 27, 2019 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

Present: Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Jay Kwon, Louie Kroll, David
MacDonald, John Phillips, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell Watts

Absent: William Pigeon

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer;
Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry
Gudino, Accounting Manager; and Colin Bishop, Member Services Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Christopher Boucher ~ Wiley Price & Radulovich LLP
Ed Hoffman Verus Investments

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes from the February 27, 2019 meeting with a correction to Page
4, Item 10, middle of the first paragraph, changing the sentence to “Dunn stated that to be
pensionable, the standby pay must be for work; (1) within the normal working hours set forth in the
applicable employment agreement, (2) required by the employer to be worked by the employee (as
distinguished from voluntarily worked), and (3) ordinarily worked by all others in the same grade or
classification at the same rate of pay during the FAS period.” (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe,
Kwon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

MacDonald was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

CLOSED SESSION
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6.


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#3



Page 2
March 27, 2019

The Board moved into open session.

4. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6.

5. Presentation from Chief Investment Officer and Verus on updated capital market assumptions
and suggested revisions to strategic asset allocation

Price reviewed the process for the annual asset allocation and capital market review. He reviewed the
size of the current liquidity sub-portfolio noting we target 4 years of benefit payments based on
actuarial projections. He stated the amount to be funded in July 2019 has a present value of $530
million and the expected size of the Liquidity Program totals $2.07 billion for the next four years (July
2019 through June 2023).

Hoffman reviewed the following recommended changes: 1) Resize the Liquidity sub-portfolio from
23% to 24% based on current projections; 2) Decrease the Growth sub-portfolio from 67% to 66% by
decreasing Private Real Estate from 9% to 8%; and 3) Adopt asset allocation Mix 1 as the investment
program’s new long-term asset allocation.

Price reported there is no action to be taken at this time and noted staff will return with a
recommended Investment Resolution for the Board’s consideration at a future meeting.

6. Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report —
Price reported he received notification that Jesse Fogarty, a liquidity manager with Insight, will
be leaving the firm in the next few weeks. He noted he is not one of our main portfolio managers.
He reported we have an assigned replacement and staff will be conducting an on-site visit in New
York during the next quarter.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
None

(c) Trustees’ comments —
None

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Todd Smithey, Chairman David MacDonald, Secretary



J2210 JUBWISIAU[ JB1YD

v4D ‘@d1id Ayzowii)

U
o §
SNES

T S| n
SNBSS
333
S <

MBIASY 01|0J140d-qnS Alipinbiy

UO011B1D0SSY 1UdWaldY ,saako|dw]

AINNOD
VLSOO
=’ YV UINOD

‘ - 100



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#5



200

suols1D9Qq d1891e43S (9

ue|d 3ulpund jenuuy (g

9[1yoad molj ysed (v

Ja8euew yoes Jo 9j0J pue wesdoud jo uonisodwo) (g
9JUeWJI0}I9d |euoidound (g

Jlomawely 444 ul oy (1

MIINDY weia3oid AJipinbi

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

g A 200



€00

SsjuawAed

/ suol3Ngliuo)d

99Ao|dw3
pue JaAojdw3

Aipinbn

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
VLSOO
VIINOD



00

sjuswAed 11jouaq ayew 01 moj4 ysed Ajyiuow
Asessadzau ayi sapinoad oljojriod-gns Ayipinbi aya
199p Sulanjew pue 3uipeJ) ‘Swodul |EN}OBJIIUOD YSNOoJYL e

wesgoad Jusawisanul ayi pjing

0} pash uayil si |[9pow MO|} ysed 1usawAed ljouaq oyl e
juswAed 1149uaqg Ajyuow
yolew 03} MO[J Ysed 9anpo.d

JuswAed 114auaq pardafoid
Ajuie122 y3iy yum , foud g
syuswAed 11j2Uaq 40 SIE3A  Yo1e| S,Jiuow yoea |9pow oM 'Suolldaloid |elienloe suisn e

S9AIRIq0

d44 9Y1 JO au01s43ul02 Y3 sI 01jojiod-gns AlipinbiTayl e

Aipinbn

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

g > 00



G00

pa31saAu| sjusawAed

suolleldadx3y uilaan SYIUOIA €t }1}2uag JO SYIUON pazis Ajo1eludoiddy
suol1edadx3y 3unasn SieaA T°¢ uoneing MSIY MO
suolle}dadx3 SunssIN +V Avjenp 1pasd Ayijenp y3iH

8T/1€/TT

JO S JUQWISSISSYy JUugWainse9d A w>_u.uw_.no

JUBWISSISSY |euoildung

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) vIsoD
VIINOD

—~—y ‘ S00



"suoiydafoud jersenyoe uodn %°
paseq 3|1J04d MOJ4 Ysed yYY3IDDD 9yl sulejuiew pue spjing siy3isu|
‘Ajlyuow smo[} ysed yy¥3ddD papasu ay3 919|dwod 03 paudisap
$91114n23s Ayljenb y3iy ‘uonjesnp-uoys jo oljojiod L ulejulew

: 0 .
Lomslony [euenioy . o, syl pue Ang,, e ul S3S9AU| ‘papuny A||n} USYM UOI1LI0||e %0G~ IYSISU| e

o 1eo)  1eo) © 1eo) L 1eo "ysed A1essaoau ay3 asied 01 Moy
-4 pue 3J9YM U0 U0I312J2SIp W4a dAI3 pue Ajyluow oj|0j340d 3yl wou}
junowe 13s e ||nd ap\ ‘91e32433e ul o1joj1u0d 3y3 0juUl SI0IARYS( pue
oot S2135149310B4RYD P|ING 0} JOPJO0 U] 3SISAIUN SWOIU| PIXI} JO AYIeMS
002¢ 9PIM SSOJIE SISAAU| ‘papuny Ajjn} UBYM UOIIRIO||B %ST~ :V4d o
005 ‘siseq papaau-se ue uo sndiod

9y} 91epinbi| ued am pue Ajyauow pajind weauys swodu| ‘suodnod
oors$ 1sngoJ Aed jeyi sa13114n2as pavdjuesend-JUsaWUIDIA0S pauOosSeas
Ul SIS9AU| ‘papuny Ajjn} UBYM UOI1eI0||B %SG~ :DWODU| PIXI4 1S

SLT6VS 0059
ST£55S sLTes3 SO|0Y J93eUBIA e
ST'6/SS 009$
00LS
sJuswAed 11Jauag |enuuy 01 UOIINGLIIUOY) JaSeuep 9|i404d Ayipinbi| pue swooul
weiSo.d Aupinbry anbiun aodnpoJid 01 yoeoidde ya3euew-13jnw e S3zi|13N o

94N10NJ1S J23eue|Al

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

- P 900



200

‘9an|eA Jej 3y} Jo 93ejuadlad
e se passaldxa ‘puoq e uo pied a1eJ 1s9493ul |enuue 3y} S| uodnod y uodno)

‘sieaA Jo Jaquinu
e se passaldxa s| uollein "saied 1sa491ul Ul 98ueyd e 03 USWISIAUI
3WOodUI-paxI} e Jo 3214d 3Y3 40 AUAIISUSS DY) JO aunseaw e s| uoieing uonelinq

‘uolysej Ajlpwiy e ul 3sa493ul
8¢ ¢ a9 LEEineg pue |edpulid s,puoq e Aed 03 Ajljiqe sy Jo ‘Yi3uaJis |eldueuly s,4aNss|
c'7 c'1 9'7 uoneing puoq e Jo suollen|eAd apinoid ou| sdulley Yyoll{ pue 321AISS SI01SIAU|

S,ApOO|A ‘S,100(d %3 pJepuels Se yons sadIAIS Sulled Juspuadapul 91eAldd

+V +V vvv  Aujenp upasd
*}jneyap JO YSH JO SSUIYIIOM

vid W3isu| Hs 11paJ2 S,01|0j140d puoq 4O puOq ke JO SI01SDAUI Swaojul Alljenb 1pat)  Anjenp upadd

8T/TE/TT 40 se sonsuaesey) uonduasag E

SJ13S13e)S JUBAD|DY :Siadeueln AMpinbi

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

— 200
-



j Mo|4 yse)d YsiH MOl YySe) MO J
ﬁ %0¢ %ST %0T %S &o;
uodno)

ﬁ sty J2YsiH AsIYy JamoT J
ﬁmw\/ (0Y4 Jea\ 0T Jed\ L
uonving

ASIY JamoT sty JaYsiH J
apesn
Yvv Vv \vJ d99  juswisenu mojag
A311bNYD 1pPaID
saijsiialdelsey)

Ww €4

ww 0€SS
sjulod siseq GT :994 |enuuy palewils]

J93eue|A 01]104110d ‘Uasshwisey Slayd
J93eue 01|0j140d Noog JIeN
J93eue|p 01]04140d J01uas ‘Ajog 92Aug

"JusawAed 3yauaq Ajyuow

S,y43DDD jo uoiyiod e dn axew 03
Alyruow paisansey S| S1314NI3S 9SaY1
WwoJ} MO[} ysed sy ‘sadedriow payoeq

JUSWUJIdA03 ‘Sulp|alA Y31y ui S3saAul NS

800

MO|4 YseD 6T0Z paidafoid
MO[4 ysed 8T0T

6T0C ‘8¢ Adenigad jo se NNV VYIDID

24N10N.11S 994

|[9uuosiad Ay

9|0y weudoud Ajpinbiy

S

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

800
o o



600

ﬂ Mol4 yse)d ysiH MO|4 Yse) Mo J
ww €91S MOl YseD 6T0Z paidafoid
ﬁ&oN %ST %01 %S &oL L MO H5E0 810¢
ww 98€S 6T10¢ ‘8¢ Adenigad jo se ANV VY30
uodno)
sjulod siseq TT :994 |enuuy pajewiis] 94Nn30n.31S 994
sty JaYsiH AsIy Jamo
ﬂ J 9WO0dU| paxi4 JO peaH |eqo|9 ‘eyds|d pireq
J98eue|A 01104140 J01USS ‘Yd143|0Y ydasor |2Uu0SIad A
ﬁWm>om 1o\ 0T me>w; "JuswAed 3jauaq Ajyuow
S,y43D0DD jo uoiyiod e Aed 03 sjeAsaqul
uonoing Je|n8au 1e sa13un2as Suljas Aq weusoud
Aupinbri ay1 01 s9INqLIIU0D 4Q "d|qe|ieAe
ﬁ 15 49MO] ASIY 49Y3IH J S$91314n23s pinbi| 3sow ay3 eIA saunsodxa
dWodU| paxi} Sululelqo uo sasndoy eyl
ﬁ apelo L A333e41S B SunJ SI0SIAPY pun4 jeuoisuawiq 9|0y weuadoud Ajpinbiy
vYvv Vv \vJ d99  juswisenu mojag
A3jonD 1paid
sonsuadeieyd) <n— Q

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

: AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

- 600
-«



ﬁ Mol4 ysed y3iH MOI4 Yse) M7 J
ﬁ %0¢ %ST %0T %S &O; ww $TeS
uodno) ww /8¢S
ﬁ\ %Sy J9YySiH ¥SIY 1Mo ww TE8S
sjulod siseq 9 :994 |enuuy palewiis]
ﬁmm\f 0¢ 1894 0T 1B9A 1T suoIIn|os All[iger] 19SSy 43Yasa0T UIAS)Y
J93eue|p 01|04140d J01uds ‘uedliiag Alusn

uoilpbing
"S913114N23S SW0dU| Pax|} 91e40du0d
SIY JaMmoT ys1y JaysSiy pue JU3WUJIA0S Uuolleanp 10oYSs YyIm
Ssal|iqel] 1o Suiyolew ‘wesdosd Aypinbi)
9y3 ul 904 uoe|dwod e sAe|d y3isu|
apeso
ﬁ<<< vV v d999 jusunsany Bo_w&
AYIpNY 1pPaiD
sJiisiialdesey)

010

MOl4 ysed 6T0Z pairafold
MOl4 ysed 8T0T

6T0C ‘8 Adenigad jo se NNV VYIDID

24N10N.11S 994

|[9uuosiad Ay

9|0y weudoud Ajpinbiy

y3isu|

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

010
o o



110

$S9204d 3ulpund
yueq |elpoisnd 1e pajnpayads aJle |enuuy 9yl ulunp weagoad Ayipinbi
sjuswaAed 1149uaq JO syuow |[esaAldS  9y3 ,dn sdojl, }jeis JuawisaAul YY¥IDID

A|3uipiodoe juswAed 11j9Uaq 91342SIp Yyoaea yodlew

SMO|} ysed wesgoad Ayipinbi 01 S)99s Yaiym 1y3isu| Aq pamainal
}JO syjuouw xis Juanbasqgns sisnlpe aJe suoiyoafoud yyauaq palepdn
pue ‘91ewi1sa |e1}iul SNSI9A 3uUlzIs
yueq juswAed 1149uUaq |en1dae Jo Suiydeuy sallenioe wod} suoiydafoud
WwoJj pasingsip aJe syuswdAed 3jauag SM3IASJ }JB1S JUBWISIAU| VH¥IDDD }1J9uUaq 03 s3epdn SaAI923J YYIDDD

JuLWasJINQSIp JO uolun} 3uiunodde ayl o1 ysnoayi ‘ue|d Suipunj jenuue ayi pue 3uizis weisdoud Ayipinbij
03 SMOJ} YdIYM ‘UOI1ew 1S9 an|eA Je||op JO SS9204d e MO||04 pue UeaA ay3 JOA0 J0j pajunodde ale sjuswAed 11jouag e

sjuswed jjouag 3ulpinoid

UOI1B120SSY 1UdWaINAY ,s23ko|dw]

: AINNOD
B AKIeR!
VIINOD

110



410

O > s Lo & aunr yoea pajuasald si yaoiym uejd Suipun
O S g %%V @O«O, eooef o,,vvs %@7%60 O,,uv@ &o& O S g %%k @@9 @OO@f O,,uv@ o,wv@ﬂ%bo %v@ eoOb . —. £ _U 1 H F\_ F\_ _Q .t u—
W@ T @ T WS SR e e e e S jenuuy ay3 ul pJeog ayj 0} pajediunwuwod si oijojod
ﬂ ﬂ -gns Alipinbiq ay3 ysaujas 01 moy Joj uejd swes ayl e
ue|d Suipun4 jenuuy ue|d Suipun4 jenuuy
ulede syiels ss920.4d 9yl 940)9q Syjuow TT IXaU 3y} J0}
9pOoW umopmedp e ul sajesado uaym ojjojaod-gns ayl e
me.SQQ Pasin . .
9 Stusuye 990 s1ua1
d Wausg €d Ewcwm
sjuswAied-aid 19hojdw3 sjuswAed-a.id 19Ao|dw3 sjudwied-aid 19ho|dw3

syjuswAed-aud saAojdwa ay3 yim uonounfuod
ul Ainr ui Ajjenuue dn paddos si oljojiaod-gns Alipinbigayl .

weisold 9yj suiysaijoy

9[9A) |enuuy wesdoud Alpinbi

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

: AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

—_ clo
-«



aiep 01
pazi|13n uaaq 1ou sey Suiduejegal g aUo0z

sjusawAed
11}9U3q JO S4edA { ydjew 03 asoyd pieog

suoisidaqg pieog

€10

‘dupuejegad g

9U07Z,, Se Juawalels Adljod JUSWISaAU| Y3 Ul 03 paJtajal

SI SIYL "SIUSWUOJIAUD 19)J4ew AJeulpioesixa ul Supueleqad
40} syuawAed 1149uaq Jo JeaA suo 03 dn asn 0} uoIsPAQ ¢

‘sieaA G-¢ Auana pamainal
9q ||IM SIYyl ‘paydlew g 03 sjuswAed 11)9uaq jo uoneinq g

oljojyiod-gns Alpinbi|
9Y3 JO s109dse |ed13142 OM) JO) papa3u S| Indul S,pJeog 9yl e

1nduj pieog

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

—~ A €10



10

papaau se wesdoid ayi Jo Syeami Joj SMO||e papuny 3q 03
$11J2Uaq JO UOIl_INP Y] JO SMIIAAJ J1poliad pue wesdoid ayl jo Suiysaljal |[enuuy e

s|eo3 y¥3DDD @nbiun uo pasndoj siadeuew
||le Suldasy] a|Iym ss220.4d JO UOIILDI}ISIDAIP SOPIA0ID 94N1dNJYS JoSeuew-1} NN o

01]0j340d ay31 JO 1594 9y}
uo spuewap Aiipinbi| aanpau 01 syusawAed 1jauaq saydlew oijojuod-gns Ajipinbi] .

uoisnjpuo)

UOIEII0SSY 1UdWAINAY ,s9ako|dw]

AINNOD
) visoD
VIINOD

— 710
-



LLOL-SCoLL#

1 YlM pa.alsiBal JOSIAPE JUSWISSAUI UB S| 47 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuawiq
13SUl pUE SIOSIAPE JUSWISaAUI PalalsiBal 1oy papiroid s| uonewloul siy]

04/24/19
Agenda Item

Meeting Date

JuspIsald dJIA ‘4D ‘uosdwig pa)
JUSPISS.d SdIA pue swodu| paxi{ jo pesH [eqo|D V4D 'eyds|d pireq
6102 'v2 I4dv

UOIIRIDOSSY 1UBWIBIISY
Seohko|dwg AunoD) e3s07) eJAUOD)

leuoisuaui A_


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#5



8LCL-L9dIN

Z "JUBWISBAUI 031IP 10} B|qE|feAR J0U e S30IpU| “077 'S30Ipul Bred 301 6T0Z © Brep Xepul TWviog 30
"uN029e AIOSIAPE S1I JO JuaWwaleurew ay) ul INJUI [[IM 11 SaSuUadxa Jay1o pue saa) AI0SIApe syl Ag paonpal aq |[IM Unlal JUSWISaAUI

S.1UBID V "UMoys aouewlopiad ayr uey) Jamoj 4o Jaybiy aq Aew souewlopiad Jualing "s)nNsaJ 1NNy Jo asjuesend ou si pue souewlopiad 1sed sjuasaidal UMOYS B1ep aduew.olad
'SPJ023J S,UeIP0ISNI INOA WOJJ JaIP AW Y2Iym SPI0dal pue 00q Juspuadapul S,[euoisuawiq Wolj padinos ale papinoid sanjeA 1eyew pue sduewIoLSd

920'201'SLES anjeA 19del [e101
— c6'l — X3PU| JUSWUISAOKD) % a1elodio) gn JesA G- JAVIeg 3DI
9L0¢/L/cL A4 920'20L'SLES (s@94 Jo ssoub) 11a3YD SN INHIL-LYOHS V3T ALNNOD VYISO VILNOD

AIVINIANS ANTVA LIXHVIA

a1eQ yiuow ||ny 1s| SNjeA
uondaoy| JUNodDYy
unoddy £10¢/1 9dUIS

(%) ®dueW.I0LIB 4 JUNOIDY

610C 'LE Y21eN 4O Y

Alewwing diysuoneoy—yy3DDD
leuoisuawig <



8l0L-6S¢S9#

€

‘suonn|os
JUSWIISOAUI PlJOM-|eal 03Ul Yoleasal
Bune|suesy ul asiuadxe s |euoisuswi(
0} Jusuwie3sa) buljadwod e juasaid
synsai s,oljoj0d ay] "Aiesiaaluue
Y1GZ su pasjiew Auedal oljojuod sy

S1NS3y PSppV-8njeA jo
siea\ Gz :0ljoj1iod anjep de) abieq s

WINJO4 [BUOIIN}ISU|

wnisodwAg [euoiiniiisu| |enuuy

leuoisuawi( A__

"JusWalllal Ul SUWOdUl puUNoJe
Auieseoun Buionpa. o3 yoeoudde
BAI}RAOUUI ,SBIISS pUN) Y3 sule|dxe
Jaded siy] ‘sjeob swodul Juswailel
Jisyy ensind sioyseaul Buidjay

UO pasnd0) spuny a1ep 196b.ey Jo selss
MaU e paydune| [euoisuswid ‘L0z Y|

spun{ awoou|
JuawWaliey ale( 196.4e] s |euoisuawiq

BDIUOI\ PIUEBS Q| Joquaideg

enopeyd 8-9 Aep

sjusng buiwood

*abueyo 0)108[gNs UoRLIIOJUI 1UBAT

‘suinial 1934eW 3203s Wenbasgns

pue spollad UoISIaAUl 958} UsBMIa]

3Ul| [B2LIO3SIY 8Y3 dulwexs 0} s|dwes [eqo|b
e asn em "Joded siyy u| "aulpep 193Jew
Aunba ue 03 Josindaid B 8q P|NOD UOISISAUI
aAIND pJalA e 1By} SI §81|9Q UOWIWIOD

£SJ01SOAU| IO}
UesA] UOISIaAU| DAIND) PIBIA € S90(] 18YAA

pPaysi|iand Apusdey

"JaQUISAON Ul paydune|
oljojiiod anje palebie] s1exie| Bulbiswg eyl

"JaqUISAON Ul paydune|
01|0j110d dWwodu| paxi4 Alljiqeulelsng |eqojD ay]

.HC@E@@GCNE lapun siasse ul uol||iq N_‘m% .

‘K||leqo|b seakojdwa OOE’| UBYL IO\
solepdn |euoneziuebi

810Z 'L€ Jequada( 40 sy

o1epdn w4



leuoisuawi( A__

xipuaddy

Arewwng

M3IASY JUNOIIYY
uonejusws|dw| o1jo0j140d
Aydoso|iyd 1uswisanuj

|euoisuswiq

epusby



|lEUOISUBWII(]

leuoisuaui A_



6LC0-8LLLO#

9 '$90IAI9S JuaWaBeUERW Jasse apinoid 10U S0P pue Ajuo samAnoe pare|nbal (Sanndas
ul Buireap) T adA L 19Npu0d 0} UOISSIWWIOD SBININH PUB SBNLINDBS U Ag Pasuadl| Si palwi] Buoy| BuoH euoisusliiq ‘panwi] Buoy BuoH [eucisuswiq pue “pi7 ueder feuoisuswiq “pi7 "ald SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuawiq ‘7N epeuR) SIoSIApY
pun4 [euoisusWIq ‘paNWIT eIfeASNY Y4 “Pi1 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuawiq ‘41 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq ase sannus asay “Anus sejnonied suo o) uey) Jayrel ‘AfessusB sannus parelje ng aresedss [euoisuswiq ay) 0} Siajal feuoisuswid,

"SIe[lop SN Ul slessy

AT

Aydosojiyd sadIyO €1 Ul juswabeuey Jopun Buipuno4
JUSWISOAU| Kjleqo|o seako|dwy s}assy |eqo|D 9DUIG SIBdA

8uQ +00t'L 89/S$ LE

610C ‘L€ YOIR-IN JO SV
ooue|D) e le |euolsusWi(]

leuoisuaw( A_



6LC0-8LLLO#

L

"d7 SI0SIApY pun4 [euoisuswiq Jo Jaued [esauab ay) Jo s10)0a1IJ JO preog auy) 0} SIajal ,SI01031IJ [euoisuswiId,,

"d7 SI0SIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq ‘T

€10¢ 'e3ed4ne| |9qON
ewe auabng

,"dwll jo poliad Buo| e Jano dn pueis [|Im 1eym 10} Buiyoo| 84,9\

‘Buoje sewod 1ey3 eapl mau Aiaas uo dwnl 3,uop am ‘|euoisuswi 1y,

juasaud-| 84| ‘spung
|enin|Al SN |euoisuawiq
"10103.1q 1uapuadapu|

Kusianlun piojuels

sajoydg
uoJAN

0002-1861 ‘spund
|enin|Al SN |euoisuawiq
"10103.1q 1uapuadapu|

oBeoiy) jo Aisieaiun

o U
uoMs Al

jussaid-y 10z
,'|euoisuswiq
"Jueyjnsuod)

121s9yd0y Jo AlsiaAiun

xJe|\-AroN
1aqoy

jussaid-gLoz
*2u| sBuip|oH |euoisuswiq
"1S11UBIDG JUBPISOY

6002-€002

‘spung [emniA SN
Jeuoisuawiq ‘1032241
1IN

UoMBAl
1aqoy

jussaid-900z
‘1012941 |euolsuswiq

jussaid-900z
,'|euoisuswiq

9911 WWO) YdJeasay
JUSWISOAU| BY3 JO Jleyd-0D

jussaid-9g4 1L
,‘|euoisuswiq ‘quejnsuo)

absj0D yinoweq

Yyouaig
Ysuua)y|

jussaud-| g4 L
,‘|euoisuswiq ‘quejnsuo)
pue Jorauiq |euoisuawiq

oBediy) Jo Ausieaiun

ewe4

p[a1} 8y ul 1saq ay3 Aq 19s usaq sey |euoisuswi( e Ydieasal 1o} Jeq ay |

yoJeasay bulpesT Jo abellsH v
leuoisuatuig A_



6LC0-8LLLO#

8 '8T0Z ‘TE JaqUia0a( Jo Se Uonewiojul Junoapeay [euoissajoid Juslisanu| ‘6T0Z ‘8z Areniga4 Jo Se Sail pue saweu [enpliAipu|

S|euoissajo.d

Buipes]
edLIBWY Y1ION edLIBWY Y1ION edLIBWY Y1ION
Buipet] A1inbg ‘qJuswabeue| 01j0j1104 ‘Juswabeue| 01j0j1104 ‘Juswabeue| 01j0j1104 1uswabeue oljojriog
m m [eqo|D jo peap Jo pes Aindeqg Jo pes Aindeg Jo pes Aindeg [eqo|D jo peap
ATTIM NVAY ¥3AIINHIS 130r Nd N3V SdITNIHd AdVIN 1vasod aar

s|euolissajold
Juswabeuep
ol|oj110d

vl V3

s|euoissajold
yoJeasay

wea] Buipes] pue Jusawabeuel) oljojiiod |eqo|D

eleq pue sonhjeuy 1921 JUBWISIAU|
JUBWISAAU| JO PEIH 1921j§O 9AIINI9XT Ja1yD pue 1ad1o Japuno4 pue
pue Ja21yO ereq ja1yd yo1easay JO PedH-0D) y21easay JO PedH-0D) Ja1yD-0D 2AIIND8XT J31YD-0D) uewleyD 9AIINd9Xg
ayv1lia 31ad ayd ‘'VAOZI¥ VNIAVS ayd ‘337 VNITIVIN ¥31Lng 3Ava Qayd ‘A17134.0 I Q¥vyIn H1008 dIAva

wes] yoieasay |eqo|D wes] aAIlNd9X]

SJUNOD 1BYM S| ‘1S8Pde( B Ul 10U ‘1s8) [eal e ul 1l Bunuswa|dwi pue uoneuwioul pue sbpajmous| Bupe|

osIldadxg salinbay uoneiusws|du|

leuoisuaui A_



ClLE0-688CcH#

6 "Buipuno 0} anp 9%00T [L10} 10U Aew SIAQUINN "SIe[jop SN Ul SI9SSE ||y
‘6T0C ‘T€ YoIB JO Sy

"S90IAIBS JUaWaBeurw Jasse apinoid Jou saop pue Ajuo sanianoe pareinBal (sanunaas Ui Buifeap) T adA1 19npuod 0} UOISSIWWOD SBININ4 pue SaNLNJaS ayl Aq pasuadl| si paywi Buoy| BuoH [euoisuswiq

"panwi Buoy| BuoH [euoisuswiq pue “py ueder [euoisuswiq pue pi ‘ald SIOSIAPY pund [euoisuawid ‘DN BpeUR) SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq ‘panli eleisny 4@ “pil SI0SIAPY pund [euoisuawiq ‘g1 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq '

SANODILVI ILVANVIA
suonn|os paoud Ajoannadwo) .

UOIINOSXd Poppe-aNn|eA e

L'CES
Moys-esnn

uollndaxs pue
chgwmmcmc\_ O__Ot.‘_OO_ JUSISISUOT)

weal JUusaWwilsaAnul U@UC@C@QXM_ .

yoJeasal diwspede
snoJobu uodn peseg

9°L9%
196uoT + o1eipawialu|

yoeals |eqo|b yim
asiyouel) Areul|diosipiniy e

NOILVINA A9 S3IDILVYLS

jJuswabeuew Jspun s1esse awWOdUl paxl) [eqo|b ul uol||iq §9| |$ pue edusuadxe Jo sieah GE ueyl SIO

salll|igedeD) awodu| PaxI4 SAISUSIXT

leuoisuaui A_



£180-95509#

oL

“JIaqWIBW S8NILIWOD YoIeasay JUBUWISaAU| 'Z
JaqLIAW 98NIWLIOY JUBLISIAU] T

"8T0Z 'TE JaqUIa0aQ JO S Junodpeay wes) yoreasal pue sousLiadxa Jo SIesA "6T0Z ‘8z Arenigad Jo sy

9 6 IN¥4 V4D "ewen oieioy)
ofjo
l Ll V4D "isunez owi|
S Buipnjoul ol 9l UoS|IAN Uel||iD
. ayd 61 _O [Qul [l Ll ayd ‘yueo usydelg
s|euoissajold +08 o o
SUOIIN|OS JUBWIISOAU
: : l [4 JelzpnQg ueilseqss
olul \Cowr_y |erdueul} pue 9 Zl V4D ‘sutwwind ddy
Spaau 1uaI|D O sisayiuk g € L uodko0s 7 74 Wd Jouss "v4D "wiy [sor
P 1USI|D JO SISSLJUAS o v 91l oBuo se|bnog ’ )
s uopuo
wnJpoor) wo
yoseasay 9 €¢ V4D poos wo]
wiiq Ansnpuj unsny ¢ oL uoljaseH ueky
aduaiiadxg Jo siea ) Zl Zl V4D ‘oeys pireg
odusadxs Wl N AU X
: 3 ADILVYLS ANV LNINIOVNVIN 1ONA0Yd S €l Y4 'V4D 'gyd 'uewplig Jspuexs|y
4O sleak g1l m@m‘_®>< . 62 1€ peaH |eqo|D ‘v4D z'1'eY29|d plreQ
€ 6 UoS HYdIy BOIUOIA BIURS
sloquiaW {7 e wopuo
1yBisiano Ajiep [4 € ese|eg nelg
) : 8l 8l uopBiH anspne|) l YA V4D ‘4swiysia|n uoyieuor
pue uonejuswa|dw| eo1uop eues / Sl nepja siel|
S911IWIWOY) JUSWISSAU| N SHORED
. ol €l lapeu] Joluas ‘N4 V4D ‘ssiop Ajjod
snojeyd l € exnyQ Jesjey
salealneg| |SQON ¢ 9 8 V4D ‘|ogeny Aeoeq
Buipnpul ‘siequiaw G| 8 6 H3d UBA Yieqezl|3 4 4% uosiyaIny ey
) ' 9 (014 uospleydly Haqoy oL 9¢ V4D ©|9ON ejpwed
Sgielel} o1bajens .C\Cwu.u@COl_ . 8l 8l Jspe.] Joluag ‘ossnyeq piaeq Ll S¢ INd 401USS | "ydLis|o} ydasor
w4 Kisnpu| unisny iy Knsnpu| unsny

991HWWOD
Yo1easay 1UsWiSaAU|

acusnadx3 Jo sieap

ONIAVil

aoualiadxy jo sieap

ININIOVNVIAN OIT04140d

se1b81el1s JUBWISaAUL JO uoleIUsWS|dwW 1US1SISUOD 0} paledipad

Wea| awodu| paxi4 [eqo|D)

leuoisuatuig A_



Aydoso|iyd 1uswisenu|

leuoisuaui A_



CLyO-L9cEcH

Zl 'pI7 ueder [euoisusWIQ pue P17 “ald SIOSIAPY pund [euoisusliq ‘DN BpeUR) SIOSIAPY
pun4 [eUoISUBWIQ ‘PaNWIT BIRASNY 4 “PiT SIOSIAPY pun4 [eUOISUBWIQ ‘47 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq a1e sannus asay “Anus sejnonsed auo o) uey) Jayrel ‘Afessusl sannua paleljue ng aresedss feuoisuawiq ay) 0} Siajel [euoisuswiq

"s|eob Jo1saAuUl SsaIppe

01 soljojuod swodul paxiy buibeuew
USYM SUOI}1BISPISUOD 1USWISSAUI 9SOY} uonejuswa|duwj
pasn sey [euoisuawi ‘€84 | 92Ul

aouenss|
jo Aouauun)

IS4 ebeuew
pue suinlal paydedxe anoidwi 0}
$9214d JUBLIND Ul UOIJBWIOUI 8SN S\ e

'S|eob J01saAUl 198W 1By soljoj1iod

adeys sjuressuod jes Aylunuoddo b.__msd Hpatd uoneing
pue ‘Alijenb 1peaud ‘uoneinq .

"@2uenss|
Jo Aouauind pue ‘Ayjenb 1paud
‘uonesnp Ag Aiea suinies pardadxe

pue sedld 193Jew ‘SpUOQ SSOIDY e

S|eor) JO1SOAU| 199|A
0} SOI|0J110d BWOdU| paxi{ bulbeue|A

leuoisuaui A_



9LLL-7LO9SH

€l

's}nsa. aminj Jo aajurlenB ou si souewIopad 1Sed JUSWISAAU 198JIP 10} B|qR|eAR Jou 8.8 sadipu| Blaquioolg Ag papiroid erep sAejoreg Biaguioo)g
"SIBOA €—T PUB 31RIPBWISI| :1SIOM 0} P[BIA
'S90IPU B1RIPBWIBIU] pUB Jea A £-T JUBWUIBA0D shejoseg Biaqwioo|d "siejjop S Ul erep Ajyiuop

‘swiniwaid wis} pue speaids wisl JUs1INd UsaM1ag Uoile|al 9|gel|al e sl auay |

€ge=1 09¢c=1
sdq og < peauds sdq gz < peauds SYWOW ||V
8102-9L61
aleIpawIalu|
800 900 JUSWUIBAOD) SN
acualayig uiniay
510 Kjyruop abeieny
810¢ (41014 8861 861 9.6l
00°L-
0S°0-
. Jea\ g—| snuiw
N T 000 “WIBIU] pealdS IN0D)
\ .

050 § 8L02-9L61
R SIeaA £—| SNUI
00°L o1eIpaw.I9alu|
JUBWUIBAOK) N
Apuniey 05’1 :speauds wis]

00°¢

leuoisuaui A_

Buido|g piemdn

PIBIA

ado|g pawanu|

PIBIA

winiwald wia|



9110-65E05#

14"

'Sal}1dN}eW Jopoys
196Je} ‘uoneinp usuoysg —

‘swniwaid
W8] JOMO| YlIM pajeId0sse ale
speaids wua) modieu ‘ebelsae uQ

AN plalk Jjo
syuswbes 1sadesls/1seybly
1ebuey ‘uonelnp usyibus| —

‘swniwaid
way Jeybiy yum pereidosse aie
spea.ds wial epIm ‘ebelane uQ

SswNiwaid

leuoisuaui A_

*Aluo sasodind aAmensn||i 104

Aune|y 9qi6113
BuoT 1oyg

MO

PISIA

1393vL

ybIH

JAYND AT3IA dILIFANI/LVAL

Auniely 9|qibi3
Bbuo 1oys

MO

1393dvL

PISIA

Yyb6IH

AAIND ATIIATVINYON

suinjal paoadxs Jaybiy yess 01 speaids ul uoirewsojul buisn

wia| paloadxy pue spealdg uus|



L190-7109S#

Gl 'S}nsal a1ninj Jo aajurlenB ou si souewIokad 1Sed JUSLISSAUI 108.IP 10} B|qe|ieAR Jou s sadipul ‘Biaquioolg Aq papiroid erep sAejoseg Biaquioolg
"Xapu| Ipai) areIpawIalul SN sAejoseg Biaquoolg NIpaid "Xapu| arelpaLuau| JUBWILIBA0D) S shejoreg Biaquioolg UBWUIBA0D
'S90IpU| BYeIpaWIBIU] sAejoreg Biaqwioo|d "siefjop SN Ul erep Ajyiuop

‘swinjwaid 1paId pue spealds 1Paid JUSLIND USSMIS] UoIle|al d|gel|al e sI aiay ]

oce=1 L6C =1 LL1'g=1
sdq ool < peaids sdq og < peaids SYWOW ||V
JUBWIUISAOD)
. 900 snul\ UpaID
600 acualayiq uiniay
510 A|yruolp ebesany
810¢ €Loc 800¢ €00¢ 8661 €661 8861 €861 861 €L61
0'L-
j ?B 00
o'l JUBWIUIBAOD)
SNUIA| HPOID e
0z ¢
e 8L0Z-€L6L
0'€ n/.w JUBWUIBAOD)
) SNUI\ Upa1D
ov :speaudg upald
0'S
09

winiwald 1palD)

leuoisuaui A_



9110-65E0G#

9L

*Auo sasodind aanesnsn|ji 104

speaidg 1pai)
SPIM MOJIeN

'spuoq Ayjenb 1paud
JaMo| 01 UOI1BDO||e 9seaIdU| —

uoneoo||y 1ebie|

‘swniwaid 1paid Jaybiy oy
pea| A||eJeusb speaids 1paid SpIAN e

‘spuoq Ayjenb
HpaJD Jaybiy 01 uoiedo||e 8seaidu| —

.mC‘_D_Ew‘_Q 11P34d ISMO| O] pes’|

A||e1oush speaids 11paid MoLeN SAVIYdS LIaF¥D IAIM SAVIYdS LIaFYD MONNVN

suinyal pejoadxe Jaybiy sees 03 speaids ul uoneuwoul Buisn

swniwald HpalD) paradxg pue spealdg 1pai)

leuoisuaui A_



9110-65€05#

Ll

leuoisuatuig A_

Kyijenb upaid saybiy Ky1jenb upaid saybiy

MOUIVN

uoleunp JaHoys uolneunp JsbuoT

Aijenb 1paid Jamor

Aijenb 1paid Jamor

speaadg 1pald

uoneinp Jauoysg

uoneinp JobuoT

[GERRERVVANAE! TVINYON

adeys aAIN) pIdIA ‘wId]

oljojuod paiyisianip Apeoiq e ul swniwaid 1ps.d pue wis) paadxs buinsing

yoeolddy usAL-1odJe|A ‘Palelbalu]



uolleluswa|dul| O1j0J0d

leuoisuaui A_



*Auo sasodind aanesnsn|ji 104

yseq bBuipes)

>19P10 sajepipue) —
poindex3 1o} s19pIO 195 2
W_AJ
Buipet| pedw| .m
9|qix3|4 pue oljoj1iod jo EENEEE 2
iusied JUBWISSaSSY NN M
0]
g
sajepipue) : : 3
Ang T
=
o
asJaAIuN
Sal3llund9g
3|q161|3

S19)4BIAl YIM S1oeIDlU| saiiunoddQ paisnlpy-1s0) Buiped] sassassy

ONIAvil INIJNIOVNVIA OINO41L40d

UOIIND8X® BAI1D9Y8-1S0D pue suinlal pedadxe Jaybiy Buinsing

bulpel] pue luswabeue|p|
O1|0J1104 SWOdU| paxiH palelbalu

leuoisuaui A_



LLVEEH

(04 ‘s)nsal aimny Jo aajuesent ou s duewlioyad 1sed
'sa|n1 10 19s panoidde (93S) uoissiwwo) abueydx3 % SaNLNISS B Japun JJyH L 0} SpUoq a1elodiod i suondesues Jodal 0} uonebljgo Ue aney Wil Jaquall YN 818 0Um SIa[eap-180.d ||y "SanLINIas awoaul paxi a|qibi ul

suonoesuel) Jexew Arepuodss Jajunod-ayl-1ano Jo Buniodal Alorepuew ayy sareljioe) eyl ajaiyaA padojansp (YHNIH) -oul ‘Aioyiny Aloreinfiay Ansnpuj [eioueuld ayl s (30vH1) auibug soueldwo) pue Bunioday apel] 8yl "JOVYL :99In0S
‘(SOYSHN) suoneziueblQ Buney [eansiels paziufioday AjeuoneN se umouy ale (J3S) uoissiwwo) abueydx3 pue Sanindas ayl Yim yans se palaisibal salouahe Bunes 1paid T

8L0¢/Zl 8L0¢C/L £10Z/L 9102/L SL0¢/L vLoz/L €102/L cLoz/L Loze/L oLoz/L
vvv

‘91ePUBW Y1IM JUS1SISUOD sbulp|oy
ABsre.is jo ajijoid ysu urejurew
0} UOI1oe Sa¥e} |euoIsuUsWI e v

Mo

SOYSAN 40
peaye spuoq Japysii Ajnuspl ued
e1ep 3OV L buisn siskjeue JaipnQ

<

Yield

ad4d

'SIBNSSI [ENPIAIPUI
JO 3sli 108481 01 sp|elk/seoud
uodn Ajas am ‘1ey) UBAID)

el jyswisy

Buney upaid 43S

o1x

a4

‘'suolie1oadxa
,sauedidiped 1exiew pue ‘suinjel
Uwubmo_xw IS1J ‘uoileulIOUl JUBAS |

|| 198}8. spuogq pinbi| Joj seoud
1931 W 1By} SBARI[OQ |RUOISUBWI( e (810Z ¥39WIDIA-0LOZ ATNM) SLNI¥d IOVAL ‘ALINNDIS T1JINVS

ybIH

Aujenb 11paud Jenssi s1enjeAs 01 pasn g UED UO[IBWIOJUI 183Ie|A]
SOYSYN 'sA sbuney 1pai) paseg-1adie|p
leuoisuaui A_



CLyO-L9cEcH

x4

'S1S09 Bulpe.] 1091321 Apealje salbaleils [euolsuawiq ayl Jo) pare|najed suinlal aduewload syl "S)nsal aininy Jo asjue.sentd ou sI sduewliopad 1sed

's921Id apes) aAIIe[al B} U0 19849 3|qRIapISUD B aARY pInod SiyL “(fed 00T Uey SSa| 8zIs Yim sapes) Bulpnjaxa) azis apel uo palaiy ale (isod pue soud) sapen aaneredwo)

'/ T0Z ‘T€ Jaquiadaq 03 2Tz ‘T Arenuer woly sapes puoq Aouabie pue arelodiod a)qibije-30vy L Jeucisuawiq Ag pajidwod ereq *(%T0°0) wuiod abejuadiad e jo yipaipuny auQ :(uiod siseq) sdq

"d7 SI0SIAPY pun4 [euoISUBWIQ 0} S13fal Jeuoisuawid, ‘T

'SaNNIas awoaul paxy a|qibie Ul

suonoesuel) Jexew Arepuodas Jajunod-ayl-1ano Jo Buniodal Alorepuew ayy sarenjioe) eyl aja1yaA padojaasp (YHNIH) -oul ‘Aioyiny Aloreinbay Ansnpuy [eioueuld ays si (30w 1) auibug soueldwo) pue Bunioday apel] ayl "JOVYL :92In0S

a1es0diod) Aousby

sdqg- sdqe-

$}S02 82Npal
sdjay yoeoudde a|qixo|{

"9o1d [|9s s |euoIsuswI
ueyy Jemoj st @oud ||os yusdelpe
obelane 8y} 'opIs [|8S OYL UQ e

a1elodio)

4

sdger @

sdg gL+

‘oo1d Ang s |euoisuswiq
ueyy Jaybiy si @o1d Ang jusoelpe
sbelane syl ‘spis Angayp uQ .

"SDIISIIe10RIRYD 1PBID pUR
wiia) ovj1| Jo sienssi/sanss| buowe
Ajigixs|} uo peseq yoeouddy e

(3ZIS 3AVYL M00L$ WNININIIN) STAVYL INFOVIAVY NVHL ¥3IMOT IDd ISYHIHNd

Joyy epel| @ alojeg epel] @ 19peI] [euoisuawid ¢

Buipe.y usym Aoeipswiwil Buipuewsp ploAe 01 $388s [euolisuswiq

bulpel] 1usiled Jo sbejueApyy 9d1id SAI1R|9Y

leuoisuaui A_



M3IASY 1UNODDYY

leuoisuaui A_



8LCL-L9dIN

€C "aAIsuayaJdwiod 10N 'z
"LI0Y'[RUOISUBLIIP'SN 18 10 00-90€ (ZTS) T8 199]100 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq Buljea Ag ajqe|rene aie sasnoadsold ‘smoadsoid
a1 Ul yuIo} 18s Saulapinh ayp uiyim aiming ayy ul aBueyd 01108lgns si yaiym ‘oljopod sy Jo JuswiaBeurw Aep-01-Aep 1UsLIND B S108)181 UlsIay paureluod uoimewolul 8y snoadsoid ayy Ag paulanoB si oljojiod "abueya 01 108lgns T

X9PU| JUSWUISA0L) pue a1e1odio) gn JesA G—| TNVeg 3D

s)dewyduag

SUON abeuana

V/N syuswnJsu| BuibpaH

V/N sjulesisuoly dsn-uoN

Auo asn ainsodx3 Annuno)/Adusuin)

$91311N29s padPeg-1uUsWUISA0b SN UO HWI| ou ‘gdg + V Ul % ‘VV + VVV Ul Wnwixew ¢ S1UIBJISUOY) JaNss|
spuoq pesjuelenb §n UO Wl OU ‘ggg + V Ul %| ‘VV + VYVV Ul Wnwixew %G S]uleJ1suo)) Jojueleno

%GZ $O WnWIXe|A sjuleJ3suod) Aisnpu

Kyunoss |enpialpul Joy Allinlew suesk G ‘oljoj1iod uoj uollelnp siesk € JO wnwixelp uoneinq abeusay

,Sie1aweled uswisanu| iewnd

L 2 a4gd * vV V'S Kousby
. v . VvV . Ainsea| An1qiBy3 Ajeno wpaud
sjus|eainba yse) s|euoljeueldng
salelodio) sapuaby salinseal| Stuawisau| 3q1b13
uol|iw |'G/€$ juswabeuep Jopun s1ossy
910z JequwedeQ @1e( uondaody

MIIAYIAO OITO41d0d

161L0C ' LE YOIBN 4O S MBIMBAQ

HPaID) SN WS | -HOYS YT A3unoD) e3s070) BIIUOD)
leuoisuaui A_



8LCL-L9dIN

1£4

“JUBLUISBAUI 101D 10} B|qe|RAR 10U BJe S32IpU| "D ‘S82Ipul Bled 31 6T0Z @ BIep Xapul TAvIog 31 aBueyd 01108lgns are sBuipjoH

6l0¢/¢ 8Loc/el 8L0¢/6 8L0¢/9 8L0¢/€ LLoc/el £102/6 £102/9 £10¢/€ 9Loc/elL
00

S0

o'l

Sl

slea )\

0¢

/ q'Z

-~ )

Hpai) SN wis] Hoys vy3
%#CSOU e1s0) eJjuo) ce

(6102 HO¥VYN—9102 ¥38IN3D3A ‘ATHLNOW) NOILYYNA IDVYIAY

¥S'C 99'C 082 £9C X9pU| JUSWUISA0L) pue a1elodiod) SN JesA G—| TAVed 3Dl
eLe 8L¢ eve Le¢ 110342 SN NYAL-LIOHS Vi3 ALNNOD VLSOO VILNOD
Aune uodno) (s1eap) (s1eap)
01 Pp[SIA abelany Aunie uoneing

abeiany abeiany

6102 'LE YoLe\ 4O se solisualoeieyd)

HPaID) SN WS | -HOYS YT A3unoD) e3s070) BIIUOD)
leuoisuaui A_



8LCL-L9dIN

V4 "abueyo 0110algns are sbulpjoH
"0YSHN Ue woyy Bunes Ipaid paress 1saybiy ayy se ybiy se aq Ajuo uea Huiel feuoisuswiq [eusdiul 8y “Buies [euoisuswiq [eussiul ay UBISSE [[IM am ‘Saiundas

Kouaby pue Ainseal] Sn pue sfedidiuniy papunjey-aid Se yons ‘seaurisul Ulelad uj “Bunes ueipaw ay) ubisse am ‘sbunel apinoid [[e 4S pue ‘yon4 ‘s.Apoojy Ji ‘ajdwexa o4 *(.SOYSHN,) suoneziuebiQ sbuney [eansnels paziubosay

AjreuoneN wouy sBuirel pajels uo paseq Hunyes ansodwod e ubisse Ajressush am ‘sesodind Buniodal 104 *sanssi igap Jo Alfenb 1paid sy} el uoeiodio) S,100d 7 plepuelS pue ‘sbuney yali4 ‘9d1AIeS J0iseAu| S,Apoojy saloushe Bunes ypal) ‘T

L L'V gl Ley 0By syiuo z1
9'¢ 0°C IRAZ 6'LS wauny
1N ‘seudng sjelasnpu|  "3,A00) s|erpueul fouaby
Kinseau|

(%) IdAL JOLD3S Ad NOILNGI¥LSIA

€¢ec 0By syluo Z1
7'E €0¢ 1waun)
sieap sieap
S—v =€ €-¢ ¢l 1-0

(%) ALIMNLYIN A8 NOILNGI¥1SIa

Z'8¢ obBy syluo Z1

waun)

ddd \4 v vvv

(%) 1ONILVY LId3¥D A9 NOILNGI¥LSIa

6102 'LE YoLe\ 4O se solisualoeieyd)

HPaID) SN WS | -HOYS YT A3unoD) e3s070) BIIUOD)

leuoisuauig A_



8LZL-19dN
9C "JUBWISAU 19311 10} B|qie|leAe 10U aJe S8aIpu] “07T ‘SaaIpul eled 30| 6T0Z O erep Xapul TNvjog 30
‘pazifenuue Jou aJe Jeak auo uey) Jajoys spouad o) suimay ‘T
"JUN029e AIOSIAPE S1I JO JusWaBeUERW SY) Ul INJUI [|IM

1 sasuadxa Jay1o pue saa) AI0SIAPe 8y Aq paonpai aq ||IM UIn)aJ JUSLWISBAUI S,1USI|D / 'S)NSal a1nny Jo sajuetenB ou SI pue souelwwiopad 1sed sjussaidal UMOYS elep souRWIoLad

810¢ £10¢

L6°L

X8pu| JUsWUIBA0D) pue a1elodio) SN JeaA G—| TAVIOg 3D1 @

1INNODJV I1ViVd3S (s@9} Jo ss0uB) 1Pl SN WIe]-10YS ¥y A1uno) e1so)) eUOD) @

920'201'S/€$ JINODNI daxid V3
(%) SNYNLIY ¥VIA ¥VANTTVD

ALNNOD V1SOD VILNOD

anjeA JUNooddYy

c6'l LGE 9L X3pU| JUBWUIBA0D pue 83elodio) SN JedA G- TAV4Og 3D

AN LO'Y q0'¢ (s@®4 Jo ssoub) 1 1a3yYD SN INYIL-LHOHS V¥ ALNNOD VISOD VHINOD

(%) ,SuIMay pazijenuuy

YIUuo\ JeaA | aleq
__JH_ S| 0O} Jes \
JUNo2dYy

L10¢/1

9dUIg

6102 ‘L€ YoJe| JO se adueuwIOuad

HPaID) SN WS | -HOYS YT A3unoD) e3s070) BIIUOD)
leuoisuaui A_



Arewwung

leuoisuaui A_



9LCL-LYLoSH

°¥4 "S30IAIDS Juaabeuew 19sse apiAoid 10U S0P pue Ajuo saniAnde parenbal (senunaas ui Bulfeap) T adAL
10NpU0J 0} UOISSIWWIOD SaININH pue Sanundas ay) Aq pasusal| si panwi Buoy| BuoH [euoisuawiq "panwi uoy BuoH feuoisuswiq pue “pi7 ueder feuoisuswiq “'pi7 “dld SIOSIAPY pun4 feuoisuawiq ‘O7n epeur) SIOSIAPY pund [euoisuawid
‘palWIT elfeASNY Y4 “'pi SI0SIAPY pun4 [euoisusuid ‘47 SIOSIAPY pund [euoisuauiqg afe sannua asay ‘Anua Jejnaired auo o) uey Jayiel ‘Ajrelaual sannua paleljie Ing sxeredas [euoisualuiq ay) 0} S1ajal ,SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuswiq,

S1ual|o JNO O] JUsWWWOD spiMWILL Y/
suJnial U@PUGO_XG JO SUoIsuswip w@@\_w“_. 12yl SuoIlN|Os JUsWSaAU|

oduew.olad 1o} Jenew jey) syospedy
Bbuibeuew sousiiadxe Jo sieak g ueyl aiow Ag pawlojul ss8201d JUBWISEAUI DIWRUAP W/

yoseasal |eouidwae pue |esnelosyl snotobu Ag pepoddns Aydosojiyd juswisanul uy

yoeoudde usaup-ssedoid pue ‘Juaiedsuel) ‘peseq-ydiessal e YiM Wil JUSWISSAUL [eqo|b v

SIOSIAPY/ puUNn4 |euoisuswi(]

leuoisuawi( A__



Xipuaddy

leuoisuaui A_



LLOL-VCoLL#

o€ “BuIpuNo 01 8NP 90T (210} 10U AW SISGUINN "SIE[|op SN Ul SISSSE ||y
'$90IAISS JUsWaBrUERW 18sse apiroid 10U SB0P pue Ajuo samAnoe parenbal (sanindes

ul Buifeap) T adA L 19NpU0d 0} UOISSILIOD SBIMN PUR SBNLNIAS BY1 Ag Pasuadl| si palwi] Buod| BuoH [euoisuswiq “panwi] Buoy BuoH [euoisuswiq pue “pi7 ueder feuoisuswiq “pi] “ald SIOSIAPY pPun4 [euoisuswiq ‘)N epeuR) SIoSIAPY

pun4 [euoisuswIq ‘PaNWI BIfeASNY Y4d “PIT SI0SIAPY pund [euoisuswilq ‘dT SIOSIAPY pun4 [euOISUSWIQ aJe sannua asay *Anus sejnonsed auo o) uey) Jayres ‘Ajjessusl sannus pareljiye Ing areledss [euoisuswid ay) 01 Sisjal Jeuoisusuid,

L'L$ deD lews
8'8% den abue
8°/C$ anjep
6% ded QINS/IlBWS 0€E$ 940D de) ||y
9GS anjeA L'9LS Aunb3 s1aspiey buibiawz
6°0% a1e( 196.e| 6'LE$ dep abue/de) ||y
LLS uoi3ed0||y [eqo|D s'ov$ Aynb3 jeqojp 0'8$ de) oI
8% sa1powwo) 89L$ anjep de) |jews
s1z$ a1e153 |edy 0SLS anjep de) |jews z9¢$ de) |jews
L'SES Y10 00Z$ de) |jews 1'8L$ anjeA de) dINS
7'8L$ anjep deD abueq 8°'LE$ anjep deD) abueq
z9% pa1da304d-uone|j| £'8% de) abueT L°12% de) abuer
zers |eqo|D pue 5N-UoN S0$ yimolo LC$ ymolo
0'8% 1dwex3-xe] SN L3 anjep de) ||y 8'9% anjep ded ||y
z'65% sn 98€$ 810D de) ||y 6°0L$ 910D de) ||
S9LLS awodu| paxiy 6'€0L$ Aunb3 sn xe padojeasq 0°€02$ Aunb3 sn
(suoljiq up)

1064e] pue|'wwo) %0°L %EEL %0'81
uonedo||y pue Ayinbg Ainb3 syexen Ayinb3g gn xe
jeqo|o | s1/3y [ego|D Buibiaw] padojanag

A A

6102 'LE Yole 4o se ANV [eqo|6 ul uol|iq 9/5$
mCO_uﬁj_Om uﬁcwguﬁm®>c_ _mO_O_mu _mCO_mcmg_D

leuoisuaui A_



LLCL-ECE6SH#

L€

paipalold .
uonejuj
Jeddiuny
wia ] -a1eIpawialy|
JusWUIaA0D)
SN X3 pl1oM .

[edidiuniy
W9 | -93eIpaWIdU| D

ANY3L 4IONOT <«

Jjuswuisnon

ajeIpawLIBIU|

ALITVNO 43HSOIH

*Aluo sasodind aAmensn||i 104

uinlay
[eay uinay
jeddiuniy |eay puog
ejulojiied [eddiunpy  jedplunpy
puog puog
jeddiunpy  jedidiuny leqo|D
NI AN JBdA-G

JuBsWIUIBAOD)
1edA-g 1119-1
jusWIUIBAOD)
wis | -Hoys . ®
leqo|D  paxid
| JBBA-Z JedA-Z
fedpuniy . . paxi4
wia ] -1oys e o Jedp-]
jedpiuniy
wia ]
-Hoys vo

a|qeuteisng/jerros @ KajenD popUsH
E‘_w.._.-wwm_vw_.c;wpc_

1eqoD @
paideloud uoneju)
Hpal) s|qelepn @

Aumely sjqeuepn @

leuoisuaui A_

!

|e1dog

apeln
JUBWISAAU|

!
!
!

snid 8103 [eqo|D .

Aujiqeurersng
[ego|D

v
ALITVNO 43aIMO1

> ANY3IL Y3 LIOHS

leqo|9 Kueno
/ winiay |eay pabpap papuaixg
/| uopeung-Hoys  Ajeapsjes wua | -Hoys

Hpaid
po1abue)

Spas 1ual|D alali(

104 sa1ba)e.1g JO sbuey v



LLVEEH

4 'sa|N 40 19s panoidde (93S) uoissiwwio) abueyax3 7 SaNNISS B Japun JJyY L 01 Spuoq arelodiod uf suondesues Lodal 0} uonebigo Ue aney Swlj Jaqual YN 8/e OUyM SIa[eap-1930iq || 'Sanunaas
awooul paxi 3|qibie Ui suonoesue] 19 ew Arepuodas Jajunod-ayi-1ano Jo Buiiodal Alorepuew ayy sareljioe) eyl ajo1yaA padojaasp (YHNIH) -oul ‘Aioyiny Aloreinfay Ansnpuj [eioueuld ay) si auibu3g aoueldwo) pue Huinioday apel] ayl
“JayIp Aew synsal pue suopelaidiaul ‘sajdwexa aaensn|i Ajaind

uonejuawsajdwi AGajeys o3 |eabajul si erep JOVHL

Kioyusaul NN LS 140ys Ay

Jajeap ‘eoud Jaybiy e 1e A LS seseydind uswolsnd Jaylouy - drzveil vl ver Otewll S0z 9el 000"} I°s eeed v
Jawoisnd snoinaid ueyy 8dud Jamoj e 1e NN LS Ang )
pue uoneAilow s,is|esp uo azijelided o1 Allunyioddo ue ass €00:L7-0L vl uer vrLELL  6ELC LEL 000"} IS 121€e@ - €
am ‘skep 9 Joy Aiojusaul Bulurewsa Buipjoy useq sey Jajea( -
a8} N L$ Aq peonpad Aiojusaur s1sjesp dzo:1€:21 80 ver OLcvll 0S0Cc 9¢l 000°L [I8S 18188g ¢
‘aseyound usjesp ueyy ooud Jaybiy e 1e puoq sAng Jswoisn) -
anjeA adey _\/__\/_N% \AQ sosld \COPC®>C_ ,Sslojeaq - Qﬁmom._w €0 ver 9s9°¢ll 00c'¢ g€l OOO.N >3m is[es l
swil  aleQ a0l PRIA  AsL o1 (,000) odA| spei|
uolndaxy peaidg  a8zIg

suonejaidiaiu] sjdwexy

suoneanow Auediejunod s|qgissod uo
ozi|e1ided pue spuoq 91e20| 01 S|gpoul
A1ojusAul 1SNQOJ SOsN [eUOISUBWI(] e

Aiousaul ssjesp yaidieu| —
Ajenb upeid sjenjeay —
soo1ud juauno Ajuep —

:0} [BUOISUBWI( SMO|[e IDVYL o

anjeA ppe 01 BuipeJy 8|qixa|} pue jusied seieyl|oe) Aousiedsuel|

spuog buiesoT pue s|@po|N Alolusauj

leuoisuatuig A_



SLLO-BLLLY#

€e 'soljopod pafieur-feuoisuawiIg Usamiag 1ounsip ag Aew sauljapinf JuswisaAul pue “ysu Buissalppe uaym siuawaalife Buluianoh
s,01joj10d Yyaea Ul y)oj 18S SUuOIRNILI| puB S8AR8[g0 JUBLLISAAUI B} SI8PISUOI 880D JUBWISAAU| 8y “oljopiod yaea 0} ayioads sauljapinb jualisaaul Bunesald Joj a|qisuodsal S 8anILWOY JUBWISBAU| S,d7 SIOSIAPY pun4 [euoisuawiq

Kj|lenuue pawuoyied

Hpne 91 3ySS uspuadapuy
slojipne pue Sueq

ueipOolsnd ‘JueluNODdDe Em_ocwqmvc_

Aouaun)
aoueldwod speJy-1sod
pue -aud anisusyaidwo) Anuno)
s|003 s Aned-puiyy pue Aieyaudoud Ansnpu]
uonn|os Juswabeuely dysiy Jojuesenc
JepIQ J9AlY S9jdeYD PazIWolIsND) |JeuonesadQ Jonss|
dnouB d :(3|qeoijdde se) s1adey sty
sdnoJb sougljdwon 8|dinjnw ssoude uonedlyisiaAlp uo siseydwy uoljeijuaduod)
pue .“cwEwmmcm_\/_ Ol|oj1iod ‘@d1uwo)
1UBW1SaAU| JO 1YBISIBAO 8dUBUISAOL)
spea.ds

Kuainoe 1931ew

Uo paseq syusLISNIpe dnewayshs }paJo/wie) pue sad1d 193Jew JOUUOA|

sy
poBeuew wies| uoneuswaiduw oljoj110d ||eJ9AO pue SBNss! [enplAlpul N
: Jo Aujenb 11paid pue uolleinNp JOUUOIA onewsajsAs
sdnoub eoueldwo)
. 1o Bulonuow swi-|eay
pue ‘Juswabeuep 01]0§10 ‘©91HWWOD)
JUSWISAU| JO 1YBISIOA0 8DUBUISAOK) NS1 uol1308|as anssi ul AjiqIxa|4 JuswoBeuep
uoneslyIsisAlp uo siseydwy Ayedisquno) sai31und9es pinbi| uo siseydwy Aupinbiq

sa1691e415 SWOdU| Paxi4

S9J2IN0STY puUE SINSES A uﬁcwgwmmcm_\/_ MBI

leuoisuawi( A__



ve

‘€9 pue '/ 'HZ sesudl| YN |4 SP|oY pue Jep|oyisneyd @y4D & Sl pa] AlISieAlun UO}edUlld WO SOILIOUODS
pue sonijod ul g e pue AlIsisAlun ula1samyLoN 1. Juswabeue|yl Jo [ooyds B6o)jjay ayi wolj Jolreyaq [euoneziuebio pue ‘ABejens ‘Bunsyiew
Ul Yg|A Ue paules aH |y A|uo-8a) e pue ‘UeyleN UOIT ‘|911e|A ‘|eieuan) X |ebaT ‘siaylolg UOWO|eS o) padiom pa | ‘[euoisusuiq Buluiol o1 Joly

"S1USID Yum Appdalip Bupiom 01 uonuaiie siy paylys sey ay ‘Apusdal 1sojp “dnoub syl ebeuew
pad|ay A||enuaAs pue 1LI0}e SUOI1e|aJ JUB}NSUOD §,[BUOISUSUIC YlIM PBA|OAUI 106 pa| ‘J81eT ‘8Allelliul 193Jew UOIINGIIIUOD Paulyep s,Wllj 8yl ul 8|od
diysiepes| e Buijel aiojeq uelNsuod Bunasiew e se uebaq e "willj @Y1 UIYlm suonisod Jo Jaquinu e pjay sey pa] ‘g0z Ul [euoisuswiq Buiutof eoulg

‘sue|d uonnguuod paulep pue uoisuad a1elodiod pue ‘siosuods ue|d AsjlieH-1jE | 'SIUSLUIMOPUS ‘SUOIBPUNO)
‘spuny uoisuad o1jgnd y1m sdiysuonejal Buluiejuiew pue Buidoj@asp 1o} a|qisuodsal si ‘Wes] S8dIAI9S [BUOIIN1IISU| 83 UO 1UspIsald 8dIA e ‘uosdwis pa|

Pcmb_ww\_n_ S2IA
V4D ‘uosdwis pa|

‘ueBIydIN Jo Alisiaalun ey wodj Buliesulbus suonelsado pue |elISNPUI Ul G B pue ‘sajalbuy SO ‘eluIoyi|eD
}Jo AlIsIaAIUN By WOl YgIA Ue SP|OY 8 "S1usuIniisu| sexa ] J0j Jouue|d suoliesado Ue sem pue $91e100ssy Ulslsulgny ualig,O pue|e Jo4 suoido
pue saininj xapul 3003s pabeurw ay ‘4841 Ul |euoisuswiq Buluiof 03 ol 944 | Ul uoneubisep @isA|euy |eldueul{ palaliey)) siy paAladal are(

‘SN @y1 ul seibeeuls Junodoe eieledas pabeuew-xel

s,[eUOISUBWI JO uoindexe pue Buluue|d 8yl Ul [EIUBWINIISUI USSQ SeY SAR(] "SUOITRDIUNWIWIOD UsI[D PUe YdJeasal aUIodUl Paxi) 8yl JO Yonuw sulelulew
os|e 1ng soljojuod |eqo|b pue g sebeuew Ajuo 10U 8y ‘8811IWILIOY) YDJeasay JUSWISaAU| PUE 8811WWIOD) 1UBWISSAU| 8] JO JagquiaW / "SIeulwes

PUB S82UBI8JU0D §,Ulll} 8Y] 1B JO1eDIUNWWOD SAISIDUI PUE DIISBISNYIUS UE S| 8AR(] "@WODU| paxi{ JO peaH |eqo|D) s,[euoisuawi sl eyds|d areq

luspisald SJIA pue sauwodu| paxi{ JO pesaH |[eqO|D

V4D "eyos|d pireg

selydesbolg ,siorussaid

leuoisuawi( A_



8LY0-0CEro#

Ge

G/LL-9/G(0L€) :euoyd
wod'[euoisusWIp@iIsopN-Hoddng gy 1su| :[lew]

Ausieniun Alow3 ‘yg :uoiesnpy
juswisaps :JuawAhojdwg snoinaig

WIS YHM JBBA 55|
9oUsIIadX T JUSWIISIAU]| JO SIEBA €

91e1D0ssy
obuoy 0 As|png

69€Y - 90€ (¢1S) :duoyd
WO [eluoIsUSWIP@I1sa\\-Hoddng gy 15U :|lew]

Ayisianiun 997 % uocibulysep) ‘sg :uolresnpy
sajed0ssy abpuquwe) :juswhojdwg snoinaid

Wl YUM JBBA puZ
9oUsIIadXg JUSWIISOAU| JO SIBBA §

o1eossy
194194 uaineq

L¥S9 - v1€ (2LG) euoyd
WIOd [euoIsuUsWIP@ISOAN-Hoddng QY 3Isu| :[lew]

Rus1aniun umolsbioasn) ‘sg !ssauisng 4o [ooyds
yroog obesiy) jo Ausianiun g\ :uoizeonp3g

PR TAN YSIgnsHIN
-of>j0] jo jueg ‘dnoubii) :3uswkojdwz snoinead

WIS YUM JBIA 35|
9oUsIIadxg JUSWIISOAU| JO SIEBA 9

@1e1D0ssYy Jolusg
Aq3 exdaqey

Wes| 921AI8G UOI1RID0SSY Juswaiiay ,seakojdwg AJunoD) e1s07) B1lUOD)

leuoisuatuig A_

8G9¢ - 90€ (¢1S) :duoyd
WO [euoIsUSWIP@ISo\-Hoddng Yy 1sU] :|lewq

Ausianiun epesep ‘vg
‘ejuioyljed uiayinog jo AlsisAlun ‘S| :uonesnpg

|ende) sAejpieg :puswhojdwg snoineag

Ull4 YUm JesA p.€
9oualIadXg JUBWISOAU| JO SIBSA /

91e1D0Ssy Joluag
oH Busapiapp

LZLL-94S (0L€) seuoyd
WO [eUOISUSWIP®ISOAA-HM0ddNG Oy 1su] :|lew]

Kysianiun
[nedaq ‘vg ‘Asianiun nedaq ‘SIA :uonesnpy
1nImaH uoy :juawdhojdwz snoinalid

WIS YUM Jed A p.&
9oUBlIadXg JUBWISOAU| JO SIESA 9

2)eID0SSY J0o1uUag
ueyp| pswyy

9yl - £16 (0LE) :dUOYd
WO [eUoISUSWIP@UOSAWIS Pa] :|lews

Ayisianiun uolsduly ‘gy
‘AIsIaAIUN UISISOMULION ‘YgIA :uolesnp3

siayjoig uowo|es ‘|enel :3uswAhojdwz snoirsud

Wil YHm Jesp y/|
9oUsIIadxXg JUSWIISIAU| JO SIEBA OZ

juapisaid adIA
V4D ‘uosduiig pay




Meeting Date

CoNA 04/24/19
COUNTY Agenda Item

Employees' Retirement Association #6
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 24, 2019
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Tim Price, Chief Investment Officer
Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Amend the Investment Policy Statement

Background

CCCERA’s Investment Policy Statement (IPS) sets forth the underlying philosophies and
processes for the selection, monitoring and evaluation of the investment options and investment
managers used by the plan. It provides investment management guidelines and a process for
making broad investment decisions, setting investment goals and communicating the policy to
staff and consultants. Staff has reviewed the IPS along with legal counsel and proposes the
following update and revision to Section 3.A.5 of the IPS “Investment Managers”:

e Clarify that CCCERA requires its external investment managers to be registered
investment advisors, unless specifically exempted from registration

o Clarify that CCCERA requires its external investment managers to act as fiduciaries

e Clarify that Chief Investment Officer (CIO) has been delegated the authority to negotiate
terms of engagement with external investment managers so as to assure that CCCERA'’s
interests are appropriately furthered

e Delete out-of-date references to banks, insurance companies and trusts

The IPS as well as a redline showing the recommended changes are enclosed, for reference. The
recommended amended provision is as follows:

INVESTMENT MANAGERS

CCCERA engages Investment Managers to invest and manage CCCERA’s assets,
in accordance with this IPS, the manager’s mandate, governing contractual
documents and applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Board has
delegated the authority to CCCERA'’s Chief Investment Officer, on the advice of
legal counsel, to negotiate terms of engagement with Investment Managers so as
to assure that CCCERA’s interests are appropriately furthered and Investment

1355Wi||0wWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#6



Investment Policy Statement
April 24, 2019
Page 2

Managers observe a fiduciary standard of care. At a minimum, Investment
Managers (and any affiliated General Partners) will be required to comply with all
applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Investment Managers shall be
registered investment advisors under the federal Investment Advisors Act of
1940, unless expressly exempted from registration.

Subject to this IPS and any specific contractual obligations to the Plan,
Investment Managers are responsible for making all investment decisions on a
discretionary basis regarding assets placed under their jurisdiction and will be
accountable for achieving their investment objectives. Such discretion shall
include decisions to buy, hold, and sell assets in amounts and proportions that are
reflective of the agreed-upon investment mandate.

Recommendation

Consider and take possible action to amend the Investment Policy Statement.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org



Recommended Changes to Section 3.A.5 of the Investment Policy Statement

Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#6

Investment Managers

CCCERA engages Investment Managers are-delegated-the responsibility of investingto invest and
managingPlan-manage CCCERA’s assets, in accordance with this IPS-and-alletherapplicable lawsand

the, the manager’s mandate, governing contractual documents and applicable state and federal

laws and regulations. The Board has delegated the authority to CCCERA’s Chief Investment

Officer, on the advice of legal counsel, to negotiate terms of the-engagement with Investment

Managers so as to assure that CCCERA’s interests are appropriately furthered and Investment

Managers observe a fiduciary standard of care. At a minimum, Investment Managers (and any

affiliated General Partners) will be required to comply with all applicable investmentdocuments

Each-tnvestment-Managermust-be{)an-investmentadviserstate and federal laws and regulations.

Investment Managers shall be registered investment advisors under the federal Investment

Advisors Act of 1940

Managershallagree that it isa-fiduciaryof the Planunder Califernialaw—, unless expressly exempted

from registration.

Subject to this IPS and theirany specific contractual obligations to the Plan, Investment Managers
are responsible for making all investment decisions on a discretionary basis regarding assets
placed under their jurisdiction and will be accountable for achieving their investment objectives.
Such discretion shall include decisions to buy, hold, and sell investmentsassets in amounts and

proportions that are reflective of the statedagreed-upon investment mandate.


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#6



185-01

Meeting Date

04/24/19
Agenda Item
#6

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Investment Policy Statement

Adopted: January 14, 1986
Restated: September 28, 2016

Amended:

, 2019



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#6



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 PURPOSE ...ttt bbbt bbbt bt s bt b e Rt e bt e b e e et s bt e b b et e bt es b e nbe e et e b e 1
2 AUTHORITY et h bbbt b e bt e bt s b e e bt sb e e st nbeebe et sbe e e nras 1
3 GOVERNANC E ... bbbt bbbt bbbt et e b b nnesbeenbe e 2
A. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES ...utiieeiitteieeiitteeeeeitteeeeastteeeeastbeeessattseasssssssasssssesessasssssssssssessaseneesans 2

1. BOard OF FELIMBIMENT ..ottt st bbb b 2

2. AT s 3

3. General iNVeStMENT CONSUITANT ..o s 3

4. Specialty iNVestMent CONSUITANTS. ..........oiiiiiie e e 3

5. INVESEMENT MANAGETS ...t teeteiee ettt ettt ettt e st et e e be e bt se e he e sbe e sbeesbeenbeenbeasbesbeesbeesbeenbeanneas 4

6. CUSEOTAN DANK ... s 4

B. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY iiiiitiieiiitiiteeiiieteesitteeeesstteeeesssteeeessttesaessssesesssssesessssssssssssssssessssneenans 4

1. REDAIANCING ...t bbbt b e bbb bt ettt nb et b beene e 5

2. Investment portfolio MANAGEMENT.........c it eneas 5

4. INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY ...ttt ettt nne s 8
5. INVESTMENT OBJIECTIVES ...ttt bbb 9
6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY ..ottt st sb et sn e b nne s 9
AL ASSET ALLOCATION L..utiiiiiittiie e e it e e e ettt e e e etteeeesstteeeeastteeaeaatbaeeessabaeeesasbseeeassbaeaesasbeseesasbesaesasrenaesns 9

B. FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS ....oiiiiitiieeiitteeeectteeeestteeessateeeessssseesssssasessssssseassnnsseessnseseessnssneens 10

1. Liquidity SUD-POMFOTIO ... e bbb 10

2. Growth SUD-POITOLIO.......cciieie e re e 10

3. Diversifying SUD-POMTOlIO.......c.ccviieic e 11

4. Interaction between the functional sSub-portfolios...........cccoiiiiiiiiiii e 11

C. INVESTMENT STRATEGY ATTRIBUTES. .. uttiiiiiiieeeiiieeeeeitte e e e sitte e e s entte e e e stbeaesetteaesstbeeessnseeeeeannens 12

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY ...ttt bbb e b b nne s 12
8. PORTFOLIO MONITORING......coitiitiiiitiiee et 13

APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS ..., 14



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Investment Policy Statement

Adopted: January 14, 1986
Restated: September 28, 2016

AMENDED: 1/14/86, 2/27/86, 10/13/87, 8/9/88, 6/13/89, 8/8/89, 1/8/91, 10/13/92, 2/9/93,
5/2/94, 10/14/97, 5/4/99, 1/9/01, 2/12/02, 06/11/02, 11/06/02, 1/28/04, 5/26/04, 7/28/04,
12/14/05, 10/24/07, 4/08/09, 10/30/13, 9/28/16

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee
retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa on July 1, 1945. CCCERA
is administered by the CCCERA Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement,
disability, death and survivor benefits for county employees and sixteen other participating
agencies under the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937, California Government Code
Section 31450 et. seq. (CERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013,
California Government Code Section 7522 et. seq. (PEPRA) and other applicable laws.

1. PURPOSE

CCCERA has established an investment program (Investment Program) designed to provide
sufficient assets in a timely manner to pay the benefits due to participants today and in the
future, over the long-term. The purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (IPS) is to
establish the policies that will guide the Investment Program. This IPS is intended to provide
guidance to the Board and to its delegates, the Staff and third-party professionals. This IPS is
supported by the Board’s Investment Resolutions, the Investment Procedures (Procedures),
and Board policies that reflect the needs of the defined benefit plan (Plan) that the Board
administers. The Investment Resolutions, policies and other Board documents identified in
Appendix 1 hereto are incorporated into this IPS and made a part hereof by this reference.

2. AUTHORITY
The Investment Program shall be managed in accordance with applicable law, including but
not limited to the following:

e The assets of the Plan are trust funds and shall be held for the exclusive purposes of
providing benefits to the participants in the Plan and their beneficiaries and defraying
reasonable expenses of administering the Plan (Cal. Const. art. XVI, sec. 17(b); Cal.
Govt. Code sec. 31595).




185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The board and its officers and employees shall discharge their duties with respect to the
system:

(@) Solely in the interest of, and for the exclusive purposes of providing benefits to,
participants and their beneficiaries, minimizing employer contributions thereto, and
defraying reasonable expenses of administering the system.

(b) With the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then
prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with these
matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like
aims.

(c) Shall diversify the investments of the system so as to minimize the risk of loss and
to maximize the rate of return, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not
to do so.

(Cal. Const. art. XV1 sec. 17(b), (c) and (d); Cal. Gov. Code Sec. 31595 (a), (b) and (c)).

3. GOVERNANCE
The Board hereby adopts a governance model whereby specific authority, responsibility, and
accountability are either retained by the Board or delegated to others based on areas of
expertise and appropriate oversight. The Board retains sole responsibility governing the Plan,
setting investment policy, and monitoring the Investment Program. It may choose to delegate
specific areas of responsibility provided it retains appropriate oversight of the delegated
activity.

A. Roles and Responsibilities

1.

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

The Board maintains the sole and plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for
the Investment Program. The Board also understands it may delegate certain
responsibilities under the Investment Program for purposes of administrative
efficiency and expertise. The areas of the Investment Program the Board may not
delegate include:

e The governance model of the Investment Program

e Establishing and maintaining investment policy, including:
Investment philosophy
This IPS
Investment objectives
Strategic asset allocation
Allocation-level performance benchmarks
Risk philosophy
e Engaging Board consultants and service providers

O OO0 O0OO0Oo




2.

3.

4.

185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

e Monitoring the Investment Program

STAFF

CCCERA Staff (Staff), including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief
Investment Officer (C10), is broadly responsible for supporting the Board in the
effective execution of the Investment Program. The CEO provides general direction
and supervision to the CIO. The CEO and the CIO have been delegated authority to
execute specific elements of the Investment Program as outlined herein as well as in
the Investment Resolutions. The CEO has the authority to execute and terminate
contracts between CCCERA and investment managers or other service providers as
approved by the Board. The CIO has the authority to rebalance the portfolio under
Section 3.B.1. of this IPS. The CIO also has the authority to manage the investment
managers within the Plan under Section 3.B.2 of this IPS.

GENERAL INVESTMENT CONSULTANT

The General Investment Consultant (Consultant) is engaged by the Board to provide
independent, objective investment advice. The Consultant is and shall agree to be a
fiduciary to the Plan under California law. The Consultant works with Staff in the
development of recommendations while recognizing its fiduciary duty is to provide
prudent investment advice to the Board. The Consultant provides advice without
discretionary authority to execute on its advice. The specific duties of the Consultant
are contained in an Agreement for Professional Investment Consulting Services, and
generally include providing advice with respect to:

e Investment strategy development and implementation

e Investment policy development

e Asset allocation among classes and subclasses

e Investment manager selection, evaluation and termination

e Investment performance monitoring

e Investment risk monitoring

e Capital markets projections

e Coordination with the Plan’s actuary in conducting periodic asset/liability

studies and other required reporting
e Board education

SPECIALTY INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS

Specialty consultants may be hired by the Board to work with Staff, the Consultant,
and/or the Board. These will typically be asset class consultants (e.g., real estate,
private equity, hedge funds) that may operate on a discretionary or non-discretionary
basis, as directed by the Board, to meet the objectives of the Investment Program.




185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

5. INVESTMENT MANAGERS

CCCERA engages Investment Managers to invest and manage CCCERA'’s assets, in
accordance with this IPS, the manager’s mandate, governing contractual documents
and applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Board has delegated the
authority to CCCERA'’s Chief Investment Officer, on the advice of legal counsel, to
negotiate terms of engagement with Investment Managers so as to assure that
CCCERA’s interests are appropriately furthered and Investment Managers observe a
fiduciary standard of care. At a minimum, Investment Managers (and any affiliated
General Partners) will be required to comply with all applicable state and federal laws
and regulations. Investment Managers shall be registered investment advisors under
the federal Investment Advisors Act of 1940, unless expressly exempted from
registration.

Subject to this IPS and any specific contractual obligations to the Plan, Investment
Managers are responsible for making all investment decisions on a discretionary basis
regarding assets placed under their jurisdiction and will be accountable for achieving
their investment objectives. Such discretion shall include decisions to buy, hold, and
sell assets in amounts and proportions that are reflective of the agreed-upon
investment mandate.

6. CUSTODIAN BANK

The Custodian Bank, selected by the Board to act as the principal custodian of assets
of the trust, is delegated the responsibility of holding the assets and evidence of
interests owned by CCCERA in investment vehicles and cash (and equivalents). The
Board may authorize the Custodian Bank to invest in temporary short-term fixed
income investments both for the investment strategies and as a part of the cash portion
of Plan assets. Such investments will be managed in general accordance with short-
term fixed income investment guidelines as detailed in the Custodial Agreement. Cash
managed for investment strategies shall be considered to be sub-portions of the assets
managed by the directing Investment Managers.

The Custodian Bank shall be authorized to conduct a securities lending program
within liquidity and risk constraints as established by the Board.

B. Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated authority to the CIO for certain functions as detailed below.
Delegation of authority will be coordinated with workflow, compliance and reporting
procedures that are clearly defined, reviewed, and approved. This IPS is used to describe
the delegation of authority generally with the Investment Resolutions providing additional
requirements and processes. The Board shall be notified timely of all investment decisions
made by the CIO and their implications to the Plan.

4



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

REBALANCING

The Board recognizes there may be a cost to maintaining strict adherence to a target
asset allocation in terms of both transaction costs and opportunity costs. The Board
also recognizes that the benefit of cost minimization must be balanced against the
assumption of active risk associated with allowing variances to asset allocation targets.

The CIO is delegated the authority to conduct portfolio rebalancing in order to meet
two distinct objectives. The first is to maintain the long-term strategic asset allocation
targets approved by the Board. The second is to capture valuation-based opportunities
by deviating from the long-term strategic asset allocation targets within Zones 1 and
2 as follows:

i. Zonel

The C10 may periodically rebalance the portfolio within Zone 1 ranges as set forth
in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity occurs, the CI1O
shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

ii. Zone 2

With prior approval of the Board, the C1O may rebalance the portfolio within Zone
2 ranges as set forth in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity
occurs, the CIO shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

For each of the zones listed above, special consideration will be given to illiquid asset
classes recognizing that their funding and redemption processes are different than
those of the liquid asset classes. As such, each illiquid asset class is assigned a liquid
asset class to function as a holding place while the corresponding illiquid strategies
are being invested.

Portfolio rebalancing may occur by adjusting allocations to individual investment
strategies or managers or through the use of an overlay provider using derivatives.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

While the Board believes the vast majority of investment return over the long term is
dependent on the asset allocation decision and ongoing due diligence, it recognizes
additional risk and return may be generated by how the asset allocation is
implemented. These implementation decisions will largely be delegated to the CIO to
be executed within the Investment Resolutions.

i. Hiring a new manager

The CIO shall have the authority to hire new managers (i.e., purchase interests in
new investment vehicles) in accordance with the Plan’s active risk budget and up




185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

to an investment amount of $100 million. The $100 million shall represent the
cumulative total amount of originally committed capital under the management of
a single investment manager and its affiliates. (By way of example, two vintage
year funds under one manager with a commitment of $50 million each would reach
the total of $100 million.) The CEO shall have authority to execute the contracts,
consistent with the delegation of authority outlined in this IPS. Any cumulative
commitment above $100 million shall require explicit Board approval. In all
cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for vendor
selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents, including
but not limited to the Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, Conflict of Interest
Code, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy and Procurement of Products and
Services Policy.

Subject to the foregoing limitations, the CIO, with the assistance of the Consultant
and Specialty Consultants, shall conduct all due diligence activities in connection
with hiring new managers. The CIO shall invite the involvement of one or more
Board members in the due diligence process.

Quiet period. During the process of hiring a new manager, a quiet period will
apply during the evaluation process, during which time no Board member may
knowingly have any communication with any actual or potential candidate for the
mandate, unless authorized by the Board in connection with the due diligence
process in selecting managers. The quiet period shall cease upon the Board
entering into a contract with the Investment Manager(s) selected for the mandate.
The CIO is responsible for alerting the candidates and the Board to the quiet period
and its restrictions. A violation of the quiet period rule may result in
disqualification of the candidate or other appropriate Board action.

Investing in a new closed-end fund with an existing manager

In the case of closed-end funds with a limited investment lifecycle, additional
investments are periodically required to maintain asset allocation targets. For such
follow-on investments, Staff shall have the authority to make additional
investments in an amount necessary to maintain the intended exposure, as
estimated by a detailed funding analysis. Any additional investment beyond that
which is required to maintain the intended exposure must be pre-approved by the
Board.

In all cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for vendor
selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents (e.g.,
Procurement of Products and Services Policy, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy,
Conflict of Interest Code).




185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

iii. Terminating existing managers

The Board recognizes investments may need to be adjusted or removed from the
Plan portfolio from time to time for a variety of reasons, including:
¢ Organizational changes including those to the people and processes in place
e A manager’s style has deviated from the initial investment thesis
e A manager’s style, strategy, ethics, or philosophy is no longer appropriate
for the Investment Program
e Underperformance relative to benchmark or other expectations
e Uncompetitive pricing compared to available alternatives

The CIO shall have the authority to terminate investment managers. Absent
emergency circumstances (described below), prior to terminating a manager, the
CIO shall present a detailed termination memo to the Board that includes:

e Purpose of the mandate

e Reason(s) for termination

e Specific plan to replace or temporarily invest the assets

Although the Board’s explicit approval is not required, it shall maintain veto
authority should a majority of the Board decide the planned termination is not in
the best interest of the Plan.

Emergency termination. An emergency will be deemed to exist when an
investment strategy suffers the resignation or other loss of its portfolio manager(s)
and no appropriate replacement is available; when an investment management
firm dissolves, ceases to exist, or is otherwise incapable of carrying out its
activities in the ordinary course of its business; when an investment management
firm is actually or effectively shut down by a regulatory agency of a state or the
Federal government or is accused of theft or fraud by a regulatory agency or other
government body; when the Plan’s investment is in jeopardy of material loss; or
when such other developments with the investment management firm give concern
to the CIO that the investment is no longer prudent for the Investment Program.
Staff shall take action to transfer management of the affected investment strategy
as soon as possible after CCCERA learns of the emergency. In the case of an
emergency, the CEO, or in the CEO's absence, the Deputy CEO or the CIO will
attempt to notify the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board immediately; notify the
Custodian Bank that the Investment Manager's Managed Account is to be frozen
and, except for those trades which are pending, no further trading is authorized,
and may call a special meeting of the Board to take further action.




4.

185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY

The Investment Philosophy represents the foundational principles on which the Investment
Program is based. Every investment decision should be made with these foundational
principles in mind to promote the fulfillment of the fiduciary obligations. The statements
below set forth the Board’s Investment Philosophy:

Plan objectives should guide all decision making

The Investment Program is designed to provide benefits to participants over a long term
without accepting undue risks that could be detrimental to the participants or Plan sponsors.
The Investment Program, therefore, must be managed in a prudent manner recognizing the
relationships between the benefits promised to participants and their beneficiaries, the
financial health of the Plan sponsors, and the exposures within the Investment Program.

Asset allocation drives portfolio volatility and returns

It is impossible to accurately and consistently predict the future; therefore, the Plan is
required to be prudently diversified across and within asset classes in anticipation of
various economic conditions. In a well-diversified portfolio, the overall volatility of
investment returns is principally driven by the asset allocation and secondarily driven by
the individual investment strategies. As such, asset allocation is the primary tool by which
the Board can manage the expected risk/return profile of the Plan.

Short-term investing

Over shorter investment periods of up to five (5) years, volatility can be more detrimental
to the success of the Investment Program. Because paying benefits to participants and their
beneficiaries occurs continuously, the forced selling of assets during broad market
corrections to meet these payments could result in the long-term impairment of investable
capital. By maintaining a portion of the portfolio invested in low-volatility, highly liquid
securities and investment strategies, the Investment Program will be able to mitigate or
avoid the forced selling of assets during broad market corrections.

Long-term investing

Over longer investment periods, volatility can be managed more effectively to produce
beneficial results for the Investment Program. Market corrections will occur and when
they do, patient and well-capitalized investors are able to wait until the market recovery
takes place. Additionally, broad market corrections have historically provided investment
opportunities for those with available capital and the foresight to make additional
investments.




5.

185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Fees

Fees directly impact the investment results of the Investment Program but are necessary to
appropriately compensate the investment management of the Investment Program. Fees
must, therefore, be measured closely against the value the Investment Program expects to
earn and aligned to ensure incentives are consistent with the objectives of the Plan.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
The investment objectives of the Investment Program are:
e To provide liquidity to meet retiree benefit payments in a timely manner;
e To produce long-term growth to meet future retiree benefit payments and maintain a
funding surplus or closing a funding gap over time; and
e To protect the assets against the adverse impacts of rising inflation and investment
market volatility.

Investment objectives specific to the individual investment strategies are further defined in the
Board’s Investment Strategy portion of this IPS.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The Board has chosen to employ an investment strategy that seeks to align the Investment
Program with the investment objectives listed in Section 5 of this IPS. The strategy divides
the portfolio into three functional sub-portfolios—Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying—to
address each investment objective highlighted in Section 5. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio is
dedicated to funding near-term benefit payments. It is joined with the longer-term Growth
Sub-portfolio as well as the Diversifying Sub-portfolio, which is intended to offset some of the
investment risks embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio. While the three sub-portfolios are
aligned with the investment objectives individually, collectively they allow the Investment
Program to provide appropriate risk and return characteristics.

A. Asset Allocation

The Board has adopted a strategic asset allocation based on the Plan’s projected actuarial
liabilities, liquidity needs, risk tolerance and the risk/return expectations for various asset
classes. This asset allocation seeks to optimize long-term returns for the level of risk the
Board considers appropriate. The current asset allocation table may be found in the Asset
Allocation Investment Resolution.

Since projected liability and risk/return expectations will change over time, the Board will
conduct a periodic review of the strategic asset allocation to maintain an expected optimal
allocation. The Board may also revise the asset allocation in response to significantly
changing conditions that have affected valuations and forward-looking expected returns of




185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

asset classes. The Board will review capital market expectations annually. The result of
this review will be used to update the Investment Resolutions as needed.

. Functional Sub-portfolios

As noted previously, the investment strategy for the Investment Program employs three
functional sub-portfolios to construct the comprehensive asset allocation. The allocation
to the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is assessed annually and is based on the projected benefit
payments and expenses of the Plan. The remaining assets are invested in the Growth and
Diversifying sub-portfolios. Annually the Board shall review the relative size and
composition of these sub-portfolios and revise them as necessary through Investment
Resolutions. The functional sub-portfolios are set forth below:

1. LIQUIDITY SUB-PORTFOLIO

The purpose of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is to ensure adequate assets are available
to pay benefits over an extended timeframe as outlined in the Investment Resolutions.
The Board has established a target allocation amount of 48 months’ worth of projected
benefit payments in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio, which will be drawn down and
replenished annually. The assets will be invested in highly liquid, low volatility
securities expected to generate modest levels of return while preserving capital
throughout a market cycle. This portfolio will contain assets such as cash, short-term
bonds, laddered government bonds, derivatives, and other investments that provide
fixed, contractual cash flows with a minimum level of credit risk. As a secondary
purpose, a portion of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio may be allocated to the Growth Sub-
portfolio during broad market corrections so long as at least 24 months of projected
benefit payments and expenses are maintained in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio.

The success of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to directly
fund benefit payments through low-risk, cash flowing investments, as well as
providing a stable offset to the rest of the portfolio during periods of severe market
stress.

2. GROWTH SUB-PORTFOLIO

The purpose of the Growth Sub-portfolio is to grow invested assets over the long term
in order to pay future benefits. Assets from the Growth Sub-portfolio may be sold
over time and transferred to the Liquidity Sub-portfolio as needed. This portfolio is
characterized by a long investment horizon and can, therefore, accept a higher level
of volatility. Assets in this portfolio may be volatile, have reduced liquidity, and
derive the bulk of their return from capital appreciation. These assets include public
and private equity, corporate and other debt with credit risk premiums, private real
estate and other private assets.

10



3.

185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The success of this portfolio will be measured primarily by compounded annual
growth rates in conjunction with the annualized standard deviation of returns as the
primary measure of risk. Performance evaluation will, therefore, focus on the long-
term total risk-adjusted return of the portfolio.

DIVERSIFYING SUB-PORTFOLIO

The purpose of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio is to offset the investment risk of the
Growth Sub-portfolio. Investment strategies in the Diversifying Sub-portfolio are
expected to have return profiles that have a low correlation to those in the Growth
Sub-portfolio. This is expected to effectively dampen the market volatility across the
entire portfolio. As a secondary objective, the investment strategies in the
Diversifying Sub-portfolio will offer additional sources of return to those in the
Liquidity and Growth sub-portfolios. Assets in the Diversifying Sub-portfolio may
be sold during times of market stress or when the assets in the Growth Sub-portfolio
are impaired in order to fund the Liquidity Sub-portfolio.

The success of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to offset
declines in value in the Growth Sub-portfolio, as well as its ability to provide liquidity
during times of market stress.

INTERACTION BETWEEN THE FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS

The allocations to the Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying sub-portfolios will vary
over time. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio will operate as a drawdown vehicle to pay
benefits and expenses. The Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios will be subject to
the volatility of the markets in which each functional sub-portfolio invests. In order
to reallocate between the functional sub-portfolios, the Board will conduct two annual
reviews: an annual capital review to assess the relative value and risks associated with
each asset class; and an annual funding plan to determine how to replenish the
Liquidity Sub-portfolio.

Annually the CIO and Consultant jointly shall deliver a review of the capital markets
to the Board. The Consultant will provide the Board current forward-looking risk and
return assumptions for all major asset classes. In conjunction with this review, the
CIO will provide a recommendation of how best to allocate assets within each
functional sub-portfolio. If necessary, the CIO will recommend changes in target
allocations to the underlying asset classes in order to deploy the Investment Program’s
assets effectively in the upcoming year.

Additionally and subsequent to the capital markets review, the CIO will present an
annual funding plan, which will provide a recommendation of how best to replenish
the Liquidity Sub-portfolio for the next projected 48 months of benefits payments and

11



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

expenses. The CIO will provide a monthly report to the Board on the progress of
funding the Liquidity Sub-portfolio through a combination of harvesting income from
the Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios, asset sales in the Growth and/or
Diversifying sub-portfolios or the use of contributions. Under normal market
conditions, the balance in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is expected to vary between 36
and 48 months of projected benefit payments and expenses.

C. Investment Strategy Attributes

All investment strategies, whether currently used by the Investment Program or being
considered for inclusion in the Investment Program, will be evaluated on their own unique
risk and return characteristics as well as their contribution to the overall Investment
Program’s risk and return characteristics. Other risks pertaining to the individual
investment strategies and/or the firm managing the strategy will also be considered.

Fees and expenses of the investment strategies will be closely evaluated against
competitive strategies and the value provided for the services rendered. While lower fees
are clearly preferred over higher fees, the Plan seeks to identify investment strategies
capable of providing value for participants by generating investment returns in excess of
benchmark returns plus fees. Fee structures will be evaluated to ensure appropriate
incentives are provided to achieve the desired outcomes for the Investment Program.

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY

The Board recognizes that the assumption of investment risk is necessary to meet the Plan’s
objectives. Investment risk is viewed as both the annualized standard deviation of investment
returns (volatility) and drawdown exposure. Drawdown exposure measures the expected
investment loss during a market correction. Additional sources of risk include regulatory,
governmental, counterparty, environmental, social and currency. Investment risk, in and of
itself, is intrinsically neither good nor bad; it is a condition accepted in the pursuit of investment
returns. The goal in managing investment risk is to ensure that an acceptable level of risk is
being taken at the total Plan portfolio level. To accomplish this goal, the Plan invests in broad
asset classes, via specific investment strategies within those asset classes, which have desirable
expected return, risk, and correlation characteristics. While the individual strategies have a
wide range of risk and return characteristics, the correlations between the strategies allows for
effective portfolio diversification.

The approach used in constructing the portfolio further focuses on the risk characteristics by
ensuring the preservation of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio assets as detailed previously in this
IPS. Because these assets are invested in lower risk and lower return investments, the assets
are well protected. This then allows for the Growth Sub-portfolio to assume greater investment
risk in pursuit of higher expected returns. The Diversifying Sub-portfolio then offsets a portion

12



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

of the investment risk embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio to protect against drawdown
risks.

PORTFOLIO MONITORING

In discharging its fiduciary duty to prudently manage the Investment Program, the Board has
developed the following structure for ongoing monitoring of existing investment managers.
Reporting processes are, therefore, designed to provide the Board with the information needed
to execute this oversight function. Accurate, timely, and clear reporting to the Board of the
Plan’s assets, investment risks and returns, portfolio costs, and investment decisions are
essential to assisting the Board in discharging its fiduciary duties.

The CIO and General Investment Consultant will monitor individual investment managers’
performance quarterly and annually. The managers' organizations and operations will be
qualitatively monitored on a continual basis.

The General Investment Consultant will present a portfolio investment performance report to
the Board on a quarterly basis. Performance will be measured for the total portfolio as well as
sub-portfolios and individual portfolios. Each investment manager shall have a clear role
within the total fund. The quarterly report will highlight any variance from that role.

The CI10, with the assistance of the General Investment Consultant and Specialty Consultants,
shall conduct periodic on-site due diligence activities in connection with evaluating managers.
The CIO shall invite the involvement of one or more Board members in the due diligence
process. Additionally, the Board may from time to time determine that it is in the best interest
of the participants and beneficiaries for one or more Board members to visit the offices of an
investment manager, in order to further the Board members’ understanding of the manager’s
strategy and its role in the CCCERA portfolio.

13



185-01

CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT
APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS

The documents referenced in the Investment Policy Statement are listed below and
incorporated by reference into this IPS:

e CCCERA Board Investment Resolutions

e Placement Agent Disclosure Policy

e Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics

e Conflict of Interest Code

e Procurement of Products and Services Policy
e Other Investment-Related Board Actions

14



CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Meeting Date

04/24/19
Agenda Item

Employees’ Retirement Association #7
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 24, 2019
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Subject: Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a

Pension Administration System Consulting Firm

Background

In 2005 CCCERA contracted with Tier Technologies, Inc. to provide and maintain a pension
administration system for CCCERA. CCCERA began utilizing the system for some pension
administration functions in 2008. In 2009, the on-going support and maintenance of the system
transferred to CPAS. Since that time CCCERA staff have continued to work with CPAS to
deploy additional functionality of the system.

Overview

CCCERA strives to provide excellent customer service, operate the fund in an efficient and cost-
effective manner, and to safely and accurately maintain member data. To accomplish these
objectives a pension administration system that is capable of workflow solutions and member
and employer-facing web portals is needed.

An oversight project manager (OPM), with experience in system conversions and
modernizations, is important to the success of a system conversion of this magnitude. The OPM
assists with developing the requirements of a new pension administration system, issuing an RFP
for the pension administration system, and ensuring a smooth migration to the new system.

Recommendation

Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal for a Pension Administration
System Consulting Firm to provide oversight project management.

1355Wi||0wWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#7



Meeting Date

(L%IE”IEA( :( :( :ERA 04/24/19
COUNTY Agenda Item

Employees’ Retirement Association #8
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 24, 2019
To: Board of Retirement
From: Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager
Subject: Death During Active Membership - Non-Service Connected Disability

And Optional Settlement 2

Summary

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide historical data regarding the active death/non-
service connected disability benefit. Recently, Board trustees expressed an interest in discussing
the benefit, its historical data, and may wish to provide further direction.

Background

The Board has approved the right of members to elect optional settlement 2 allowance under the
County Employees Retirement Law (“CERL”) and to “pre-file” an application for a non-service
connected disability that would become effective for vested members in the event of the
member’s permanent incapacity leading to death while still in active service. The process is
generally referred to as an “active death/disability application.” The process is described in
Form 104 “Death During Active Membership-Member Election Form for Optional Allowance in
the Event of Death During Active Membership.” (copy enclosed)

In 2011, the Board’s outside fiduciary counsel reviewed the process and opined that it reflects a
reasonable interpretation of applicable law. (January 12, 2011 Board Meeting, Agenda Item 9.)
As recommended by fiduciary counsel, the Board modified the process to include a Board
determination of disability.

CCCERA regularly advises active members of the death benefits and choices available to them
through inclusion of this information in the benefit handbooks, website postings and at
retirement benefit presentations. Members who do not have the active death/disability form on
file are not eligible to receive this benefit. As set forth in CCCERA'’s Disability Retirement
Application and Hearing Policy (copy enclosed), the Board may grant a disability allowance,
upon receipt of competent medical evidence confirming that the member became permanently
incapacitated for the performance of his/her duties. While the active death/disability benefit

1355Wi||0wWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#8



Board of Retirement
April 24, 2019
Page 2

usually results in a higher payout to the beneficiary than the ordinary death benefit, this is not
always the case. The active death/disability benefit is accounted for by CCCERA’s enrolled
actuary and granting the benefit to those members who qualify for it should not result in an
increase to the unfunded actuarially accrued liability.

The historical data for the last 10 years related to this benefit is included below.

Processed Active death/non-service

Year connected disability benefits

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

N I G I == )

Recommendation

This is informational only. No action is necessary.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org



1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

Meeting Date
04/24/19
DISABILITY RETIREMENT APPLICATION AND HEARING POLICY Agenda Item

Adopted 9/5/07 #8

GENERAL PROCEDURES

Purpose.

The purpose of these procedures is to provide for the fair, efficient, and equitable
processing and consideration of applications for disability retirement made by
members of the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association under
the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (Government Code section
31450 et.seq.).

Amendments.

These procedures may be amended at any regular or specially noticed meeting
of the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association Board of
Retirement ("Board") by a majority vote of the Board.

In order to facilitate the orderly and efficient implementation of these procedures,
the Board hereby delegates to the Chief Executive Officer the authority to
approve amendments of a minor, non-substantive nature that do not alter the
fundamental rights and responsibilities of any parties in the disability retirement
process. The scope of this delegation of authority includes, but is not limited to,
typographical errors, format revisions, conforming terminology, revision of forms,
and similar types of amendments.

Definitions.

"Applicant” means the person or entity-filing the application for disability
retirement benefits under the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937, which
may include the member or any other person or entity entitled to file an
application pursuant to Government Code section 31721.

"Application Date" means the date an application meeting all requirements is
filed and accepted by the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement
Association.

"Association” or "Retirement Association” means the Contra Costa County
Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA").

"Board" means the Board of Retirement of the Contra Costa County Employees'
Retirement Association.

"Day' means calendar day. When "day" is intended to refer to business day, it is
noted in these procedures.

"Disability” or "Disabled,"” for members of the Tier | and Safety Plan, means
the permanent incapacity for the performance of duty, defined as the substantial
inability of the applicant to perform his or her usual duties: (California
Government Code section 31720)


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#8



"Disability” or "Disabled," for members of the Tier Il and Tier Il Plan, means
the permanent incapacity to engage in any substantial gainful employment (as
defined in "Substantial Gainful Employment" below). (Government Code section
31720.1)

"Hearing Officer" means the person who conducts administrative hearings on
issues related to an application for disability retirement and provides a
Proposed Recommendation including proposed Findings of Law and Fact to the
Board. A Hearing Officer must be a qualified member of the State Bar of
California appointed by the Board pursuant to the provisions of Government
Code section 315383, including an Administrative Law Judge designated by the
state Office of Administrative Hearings.

"Member"” means a member of the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement
Association.

"Non-Service Connected Disability Retirement” means a type of disability
retirement awarded to a member who becomes permanently incapacitated from
a cause that does not arise out of and in the course of his or her employment in
accordance with the statutory and case law describing the requirements for
finding "service connection." The Tier | or Safety member must have completed
five years of service and the Tier Il or Tier Il member must have completed 10
years of service.

"Service-Connected Disability Retirement"” means the type of disability
retirement awarded to a member of CCCERA who becomes permanently
incapacitated and whose incapacity is the result of an injury or a disease arising
out of and in the course of the member's employment. The employment must
have contributed substantially to the incapacity, in accordance with the statutory
and case law describing the requirements for determining "service connection."

"Substantial Gainful Employment” shall be determined by application of the
following criteria, as adopted by the Board on April 16, 1991:

1. "Substantial employment" is work activity that involves physical or mental
effort, regardless of the time spent.

2. "Gainful employment"is work activity that is done for pay or profit, whether or
not a profit is realized, including work as a self-employed individual.

In general, employment will be considered gainful if the monthly salary from that
employment is equal to or exceeds the greater of either: (a) $300 a month, or (b)
the initial monthly disability retirement benefit that would otherwise be payable.

In general, self-employment will be considered gainful, without regard to income,
if the activity is comparable to that of unimpaired individuals who are in the same
or similar business as their means of livelihood.

3. Inability will be determined using the following factors:



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

a. Previous work experience

b. Education or training whether formally obtained through
schooling or informally obtained through work
experience.

c. Transferability of knowledge, skills and abilities to perform other work.

d. The extent to which chronological age affects the ability
to adapt to a new work setting.

e. The existence of jobs in one or more occupations, having
requirements that the member is able to meet and that lie within a
100 mile radius of the member's residence, regardless of whether a
specific job vacancy exists, or whether the member would be hired
if he or she applied, or whether the member wishes to do a
particular job.

Quorum and Voting Requirements.

Whenever the Board considers any action in a disability matter, a quorum is
required. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the entire Board. No motion may
be passed in any disability matter without at least five affirmative votes.

Communication with Board Members.

The Board is the decision-maker for all disability retirement applications. As
such, any ex parte communications between any Board member and any
interested parties or their representatives concerning the merits or substance of
an application are forbidden until all proceedings with respect to the application
have been concluded. Violations of this rule may result in the Board member
being found ineligible to participate in any discussion regarding the application
or to vote on the application.

Representation by Counsel.

Any applicant is entitled, at his or her expense, to be represented by an attorney
during the disability retirement process. The party must file with the Retirement
Association written notice designating counsel and providing the counsel's
name, an address, and telephone number. Absent such written notice, the
Retirement Association is not obligated to recognize any attorney claiming to
represent a party. After notification of representation, all notices and documents
shall be sent to that attorney. No applicant or member is required to have an
attorney at any time.

Stipulations.

No stipulation, agreement, or understanding of the employer or of any other party
to a proceeding in a workers' compensation or any other proceeding in which
neither the Board nor the Retirement Association is a party, shall be binding upon
this Board or Association insofar as it asserts to relate to or affect a disability




retirement application or matter of a CCCERA member.

1.8 Service of Documents.

When a provision of these procedures requires that parties be served,
service shall be made upon all parties who are participating in the
proceedings. If the party to be served has an identified attorney of
record, service shall be made upon the attorney of record.

Unless otherwise provided in these procedures, service may be made either
personally or by mail in accordance with this section. Service may be made
by fax, if previously agreed to by the party to be served. Any document
served by fax must also be sent by regular U.S. Mail with first class postage
fully prepaid.

Service by mail is completed by depositing the envelope in the U.S. Mail
with first class postage fully prepaid, properly addressed to the party to be
served at the address latest on file with the Retirement Association.
Service by mail shall extend applicable time limitations in the manner
prescribed in Code of Civil Procedure § 1013. It is the responsibility of the
member to notify the Retirement Association and all parties of any
change of address.

1.9 Penalties for Failure to Comply with Disability Retirement
Procedures.
Failure of the member or applicant to comply with these procedures
may be treated as non-cooperation and may result in dismissal of the
application with or without prejudice. Failure to comply includes, but is
not limited to, failure to submit to medical examinations, failure to
submit documents requested by the Association, failure to cooperate in
the formal hearing process, failure to follow any order of the Board or
Hearing Officer, and failure to comply with the requirements set forth in
these procedures.

1.10 Burden Of Proof.
The applicant has the burden of proving, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that the member meets the criteria for a disability retirement, including that she or
he has a permanent incapacity in accordance with the statutory standards of the
County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 and the standards for Tier I, Tier Il,
Tier Ill, or Safety members of the Association as defined in section 1.3 above.

With regard to an application for service connected disability retirement, the
burden rests with the applicant to prove by a preponderance of the evidence
that the member's permanent incapacity arose out of and in the course of
his or her employment, and that the employment contributed substantially to
the disability.

For Safety Members who have completed five (5) or more years of
service and have certain specified diseases as defined in Government
Code sections 31720.5, 31720.6, 31720.7, and 31720.9, such
diseases are presumed to arise out of and in the course of



2.2

2.3

employment. When such a presumption exists, the burden of proof
shifts to the Retirement Association to show that the disease and
resultant disability was not work-related.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Making Application for Disability Retirement:

The Retirement Association shall furnish application forms to any person upon
request, including a copy of the regulations and policies which govern disability
retirement applications and hearings. The applicant shall complete the forms fully
and in accordance with these procedures, and shall sign and verify under oath or
penalty of perjury. The application shall be deemed filed the day it is received by
the Retirement Association. An application shall not be accepted for filing unless
it is complete and includes copies of the following documents to be furnished by
the applicant:

a. Application for Disability Retirement

b. Authorization and Release of Medical Information if the
applicant is the member.

c. All medical reports upon which the applicant relies to support
the application.

d. All other medical reports or other information relevant to the
application within the possession of the applicant or his or her
agent.

If all supporting documents are not filed within 30 days of the
application, the application will be returned.

Withdrawal of Application.

A member may withdraw an application at any time. If an application
has been withdrawn without prejudice, any subsequent application,
including resubmission of the withdrawn application, is considered a
new application and must meet all requirements, including timely filing
requirements. Any withdrawal of an application after assignment to a
hearing officer is deemed a withdrawal with prejudice. An application
withdrawn with prejudice precludes the filing of any future application
based on the same disability, injury, or disease.

Medical Examinations.

The Retirement Association may require a member to undergo a medical
examination by a physician who is a specialist in the appropriate field of
medicine, for which the Association shall pay. Refusal of any member applicant
to submit to a medical examination shall result in the denial of the application.




2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Review of Application.

When the application file is complete, all documents will be reviewed by the
Board's Medical Advisor, who will make a preliminary recommendation,
summarizing the evidence or absence of evidence supporting the
recommendation. If the recommendation is to grant the application, the matter
will be placed on the agenda for Board consideration of the recommendation.

If the Medical Advisor cannot recommend granting the application based on the
evidence submitted, the Retirement Association staff shall advise the applicant
that she or he may: 1) submit additional medical or other evidence in support of
the application, which shall be transmitted to the Medical Advisor for additional
review and recommendation; or 2) request a hearing before a Hearing Officer
within six months of the date of the letter informing the member that the Medical
Advisor is unable to recommend granting the application.

HEARINGS BEFORE A HEARING OFFICER

Purpose.
The purpose of this Section is to establish rules for the presentation of evidence

to a Hearing Officer, and to establish rules governing the process by which
Hearing Officers submit Proposed Findings of Fact and Recommended
Decisions on legal and factual issues, including credibility, for consideration by
the Board.

Right to Hearing.
Upon timely written request, any party shall be entitled to a hearing on his or her

application. The Board may also refer the matter for the setting of a hearing.
The Board may hold a hearing itself, or it may delegate the matter to a Hearing
Officer. If a Hearing Officer holds the hearing, he shall transmit to the Board, in
writing, the Proposed Findings of Fact and Recommended Decision.

Discovery.
Discovery shall be only as provided in Government Code section 11507.6,

except that for good cause shown, the Hearing Officer, on his or her own motion
or on the written noticed motion of a party, may make appropriate orders
concerning discovery. Whenever possible, informal discovery and exchange of
information between the parties is encouraged.

Subpoenas.
Each party is responsible for obtaining those subpoenas it seems necessary for

the presentation of its evidence. Applications for subpoenas may be made to the
Retirement Association. All subpoenas are to be issued in accordance with
Government Code section 31535. Issuance of a subpoena for medical witness'
attendance at hearing or deposition shall be contingent on the requesting party
accepting the obligation to pay the medical witness. Before the Board or Hearing
Officer issues any subpoena, proof of payment arrangements for the medical
witness may be required. Service of the subpoena is the responsibility of the

6



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

requesting party.

Notice of Hearing before Hearing Officer.

After the applicant has requested a hearing, the Retirement Association shall
notify applicant within 30 days that the matter has been referred to counsel, and
shall provide a copy of the hearing policy and regulations. Upon notification by
both parties that the matter is ready to proceed to hearing, the Retirement
Association shall notify all parties of the date of the hearing and the name and
address of the person or entity assigned to be the Hearing Officer.

Scheduling the Hearing

The applicant and, if represented, his or her attorney and the counsel for the
Retirement Association shall arrive at a mutually agreeable hearing date. The
Retirement Association will arrange for a certified reporter and notify all parties
of the date, time, and location of the hearing. If an applicant fails to respond to
the Association's reasonable requests to set a hearing date, the Association
may either set a hearing date or notify the applicant that continued failure to
respond to requests to set a hearing date may result in dismissal of the
application.

Submission of Proposed Evidence.

The parties shall submit all proposed evidence to the Hearing Officer and to the
other party no later than fourteen (14) days before the scheduled hearing date,
unless the parties mutually agree to a different schedule. The parties will
exchange information regarding proposed witnesses (if any) no later than seven
days before the hearing, unless they mutually agree to a different schedule.

Prehearing Conference.

At the request of any party or on his or her motion, the Hearing Officer may order
a prehearing conference for the purpose of resolving or clarifying disputed
hearing issues or the admissibility of disputed evidence.

Hearing Brief.
Either party may submit a hearing brief prior to the hearing.

Rules of Evidence.

The hearing need not be conducted according to technical rules relating to
evidence and witnesses. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort
of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct
of various affairs, regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory rule
which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in civil
actions. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or
exEJIaining other evidence but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding
unless it would be admissible over objection in civil actions. The rules of privilege
shall be effective to the extent that they are otherwise required by statute to be

7



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

recognized at the hearing, and irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence shall be
excluded.

Written Medical Reports as Evidence.

A written medical report bearing the signature of a medical withness may be
admissible in evidence as the author's direct testimony and may support findings
made by the Board or the Hearing Officer. Such medical reports shall not be
inadmissible on the basis that they constitute hearsay, but each party shall have
the right to cross-examine the authors of medical reports.

Submission of a medical report less than 10 days before the hearing may be
allowed by the Hearing Officer upon a showing of good cause. The party
requesting submission of such a medical report shall make the request to the
Hearing Officer assigned to the case and send a copy of the request to counsel
for the Retirement Association and all other parties. The request shall state the
reason the medical report was not timely produced.

Oral Testimony of Medical Witnhesses.

Oral testimony of a medical witness may also be taken at hearing.
However, whenever possible, the Retirement Association encourages the
presentation of medical evidence by way of sworn written report.

Affidavits.

At any time twenty (20) or more days prior to a hearing or a continued hearing,
any party may mail or deliver to the opposing party a copy of any affidavit
which he or she proposes to introduce at the hearing. Unless the opposing
party, within ten days after such mailing or delivery, mails or delivers to the
proponent a request to cross-examine an affiant, his or her right to cross-
examine such affiant is waived and the affidavit, if introduced in evidence,
shall be given the same effect as if the affiant had testified orally, if an
opportunity to cross-examine an affiant is not afforded after request therefore
is made as herein provided, the affidavit may be introduced in evidence, but
shall be given only the same effect as other hearsay evidence. The notice
referred to above shall be substantially in the following form:

The accompanying affidavit of (here insert name of affiant) will be introduced
as evidence at the hearing in (here insert title of proceeding). (here insert
name of affiant) will not be called to testify orally and you will not be entitled
to question him or her unless you notify (here insert name of proponent or
his/her attorney) at (here insert address) that you wish to cross-examine him
or her. To be effective your request must be mailed or delivered to (here
insert name of proponent or his/her attorney) on or before (here insert a date
ten days after the date of mailing or delivering the affidavit to the opposing

party).

Continuances.

The original hearing date may be continued by the Hearing Officer, at the
request of either Party. Any continuance beyond sixty (60) days from the
original hearing date must be agreed to by all parties and the Hearing Officer.
If the hearing is scheduled before an Administrative Law Judge with the Office
of Administrative Hearings, the party seeking the continuance will comply with
any procedures required by the Office of Administrative Hearings.

8



3.15 Time and Place of Hearing.

The hearing will be set at a time and place determined by the Retirement
Administration, and a Notice of Hearing with all pertinent information will be sent
to all parties.

The hearing or any proceeding with respect to the application may proceed in
the absence of the member who, after due notice, fails to be present or obtain
a continuance. A decision on the application shall not be based solely upon
the absence of the Member.

3.16 Reporter.
All hearings before a Hearing Officer shall be reported by a stenographic
reporter, whose presence will be arranged by the Association. The per diem cost
of the reporter shall be borne by the Retirement Association. The cost of a
transcript copy, including an e-version copy, ordered by a Party shall be borne by
the Party requesting the transcript. Requests for transcripts must be made
directly to the stenographic reporter.

3.17 Issues at Hearing.

At a hearing on the Completed Application, the Hearing Officer shall
make findings and recommendations on the following issues, as
applicable:

a. Tier | or Safety Member: Whether the member is permanently
incapacitated
from performing the usual duties of his or her job, and if service connection
is sought, whether the incapacity arose out of and in the course of his or
her employment. If the application is not requesting service connection,
then whether the member has completed five years of service.

b. Tier Il or Tier [l Member: Whether the applicant is permanently
incapacitated from performing any "substantial gainful employment" (as
defined in section 1.3 above) and either a) the member's incapacity is
substantially caused by injury or disease arising out of his or her
employment, or b) the member has completed a total of ten years of
service.

3.18 Order of Business of Hearings.

Unless the Hearing Officer otherwise rules, all hearings shall proceed in the
following manner:

a. The Hearing Officer shall call the case and ask for appearances
by all parties.

b. Relevant documents shall be marked for identification.
C. The parties may be offered an opportunity to make an oral
opening argument or statements.

9



3.19

3.20

4.1

4.2

d. The applicant shall present his or her evidence.

e. The Retirement Association shall then present its evidence
f. Rebuttal evidence may then be presented in the same order
g. The Hearing Officer may allow oral and/or written argument.

Close of Record.

The record of the proceedings shall be closed and the matter submitted at the
conclusion of the formal hearing, unless further documentary evidence is to be
received. If such further evidence is to be received, the Hearing Officer shall
allow such time as deemed necessary for filing and serving copies on all
parties. The matter shall be deemed submitted upon such final filing or upon
rulings on any objections to the evidence thus filed.

Cost of Transcript.

If ordered by the Retirement Association or the Hearing Officer, Association's
counsel, or the Retirement Board, the Association shall pay the cost of a
hearing transcript. If ordered by the applicant or the applicant's attorney,
applicant shall pay the cost of a transcript. The applicant or applicant's
attorney, and the Retirement Administrator may agree in writing to split the
cost of a transcript when both parties agree to the preparation of a transcript.

DECISION

Hearing Officer's Proposed Findings of Fact and Recommended Decision.

After the hearing is concluded and the record closed, the Hearing Officer will
send a written report to the Board within 30 days, summarizing the evidence,
findings of fact, and making a recommendation to the Board. The Retirement
Association shall serve all parties with the Hearing Officer's Proposed Findings of
Fact and Recommended Decision.

Objections to Hearing Officer's Proposed Findings of

Fact and Recommended Decision.

Any party objecting to a Hearing Officer's Findings of Fact and
Recommended Decision has ten days after service of the Findings of Fact
and Recommended Decision to submit written objections to the Retirement
Association, which will send copies of the objections to all parties and
provide a courtesy copy to the Hearing Officer. The Association and any
other parties may respond in writing to any objections. Any objections and
the responses thereto shall be incorporated into the record to be considered
by the Board.

10



4.3

4.4

4.5

Board Consideration and Action.

The Board will consider the Proposed Findings of Fact and
Recommended Decision on a date noticed to all parties. Any party or his
or her counsel may request the opportunity to make an oral presentation
to the Board. No new evidence or witness testimony may be heard or
received by the Board. The Board may:

1. Approve and adopt the proposed findings and recommendation of
the Hearing Officer, or

2. Refer the matter back to the Hearing Officer for further
proceedings with or without instructions, or

3. Require a transcript or summary of all the testimony, plus all other
evidence received by the Hearing Officer, and after receipt thereof, the
Board shall take such action as it determines is warranted by the evidence,
or

4. Set the matter for hearing before itself. At such hearing, the Board
shall hear and decide the matter as if it had not been referred to the
Hearing Officer.

Notice of Decision.

The Board shall give written notice of its decision to all parties and their
representatives within five days of the date of its decision. Such notice
shall be by first class mail and shall include the decision and the date it
was rendered.

Reconsideration after Board Action on Proposed Decision.

No later than seven calendar days after service of the Notice of Decision, a party
may file with the Board a written motion for reconsideration based on one of the
following reasons:

1. lIrregularity in the proceedings, or any order, or abuse
of discretion, by which the party was prevented from
having a fair hearing;

2. Accident or surprise; which reasonable diligence and
prudence could not have guarded against;

3. The availability of material evidence which, in the
exercise of reasonable diligence, could not have been
produced at the hearing;

4. Error of law.

When a party's motion is for a cause mentioned in paragraphs 1, 2,
or 3 above, it must be made upon affidavit(s). The Board may on its
own motion order reconsideration, but the order must be within
seven calendar days of its original decision and on one or more of
the causes listed above. If the Board does not rule on a party's

11



4.6

4.7

4.8

motion for reconsideration by its next regular meeting, it shall be
deemed denied. When reconsideration is granted, it suspends the
original decision, and the Board shall proceed as though the matter
were still pending before it for original decision, but the decision on
reconsideration becomes final when made. The Retirement
Association shall promptly mail copies to all parties.

Finality of Decision.

Except as otherwise provided in section 4.7 below entitled Judicial Review or
section 4.5 entitled Reconsideration, action by this Board granting or denying
in whole or in part any application for disability retirement shall be deemed to
be final and conclusive with regard to any and all issues raised by the
application which were either presented to .the Board or could have, with the
exercise of reasonable diligence, been presented.

Judicial Review.

Notice of the right to judicial review of the Board's decision pursuant to Code
of Civil Procedure section 1094.6, and the time limits for filing such review,
shall accompany the written notice of the Board's decision.

Request for Preparation of Administrative Record.

Any request for the preparation of the administrative record pursuant to
Code of Civil Procedure § 1094.6 shall be made in writing and filed with the
Retirement Association, which shall, within ten days of receiving such a
requedst, notify the requesting party of the estimated cost of preparing the
record.

The requesting party shall within ten days of receiving such notification, deposit
with the Retirement Association an amount sufficient to cover the estimated cost.
If the cost exceeds the amount deposited, the party shall pay the excess. If the
amount deposited exceeds the cost, the difference shall be returned to the party.
Upon receiving the required deposit, the Retirement Association shall promptly
prepare the record, including the transcript of the proceedings, all pleadings, all
notices and orders, the final decision, all admitted exhibits, all rejected exhibits in
the possession of the Board, all written evidence, and any other papers in the
case.

12



Death During Active Membership- Form

E%I\SHT&A ERA Member Election Form for 104
COUNTY Optional Allowance in the Event of Death

Employees’ Retirement Association During Active Membership (Rev. 2017)

Purpose of the form: This form authorizes CCCERA to file an application for non-service connected disability on your behalf, in the
event that you are permanently incapacitated by reason of injury or other disability leading to death while you are an active member of
CCCERA. This form allows you to preselect an Optional Settlement, pursuant to CERL Section 31762 or 31764 or the successor
section.

NOTE: The original document must be submitted. Fax/copies are not accepted.

Section 1: MEMBER INFORMATION

Full Name Employee # Social Security #

STOP - Your choice must match the beneficiaries chosen in your Beneficiary Designation Form (Form
@ 102) and a SIGNATURE(s) and adult witness is required below in order for this form to be valid.

Section 2: ELECTION OF OPTIONAL SETTLEMENT

To the Board of Retirement:

| choose Optional Settlement 2 (up to 100% continuance to one beneficiary) | only have 1 primary beneficiary
listed on Form 102 — Beneficiary Designation Form.

D I choose Optional Settlement 4 (up to 100% continuance divided among more than one beneficiary) | have 2 or
more primary beneficiaries listed on Form 102 — Beneficiary Designation Form.

Section 3: AUTHORIZATION TO FILE NON-SERVICE CONNECTED DISABILITY RETIREMENT APPLICATION

| understand that the beneficiary(ies) of the allowance that continues after my death is (are) the beneficiary(ies), having
an insurable interest in my life, on file at CCCERA at the time of my death as were designated by me on a Beneficiary
Designation Form (Form 102), a separate form.

I understand that by signing this form | elect a monthly allowance for my beneficiary(ies) in lieu of any other death
benefit including the return of accumulated contributions under CERL Section 31781.

| understand that this election is binding on me unless | withdraw this election before the first payment of any retirement
allowance is made to me, and that at retirement | may make another election of an Optional Settlement, or choose to
receive the unmodified allowance, under CERL.

In accordance with the provisions of CERL, | hereby authorize CCCERA to file an application for a non-service
connected disability retirement on my behalf in the event that | am permanently incapacitated by reason of injury or
other disability leading to death while | am an active member of CCCERA. | understand that, if granted, this will entitle
my survivor(s) to receive a hon-service connected disability retirement survivor continuance under Optional Settlement
2o0r4.

In accordance with the provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL), and the by-laws and
regulations governing the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA), | hereby elect an
Optional Settlement, pursuant to CERL Section 31762 or 31764 or successor section.

Member Signature (Required) Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Adult Witness Signature (Required) Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Adult Witness Name (Print)

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA 94520
Phone: 925-521-3960 e www.cccera.org
Page 1 of 2




Death During Active Membership- Form

E%I\SHT&A ERA Member Election Form for 104
COUNTY Optional Settlement Allowance in the Event of Death

Employees’ Retirement Association During Active Membership (Rev. 2017)

Survivor Benefits: Active Member Death (Pre-Retirement)

Death and continuing benefits depend on several factors. If a member dies prior to retirement, death benefits are
determined based on:

Member status (active or deferred)

Category of death (service-connected or non-service connected)
Retirement Service Credit

Relationship of recipient to member (eligible survivor or named beneficiary)

To qualify as an eligible survivor in cases involving the death of an active member, a spouse or domestic partner must
have been married to or in a duly registered California domestic partnership with the member prior to the member’s death.
No minimum length of marriage or domestic partnership requirement applies.

Type of Death Basic Death Benefit Optional Death Allowance
Service-Connected
Lump-sum payment of member’s Full amount (100%) of disability
accumulated contributions retirement allowance deceased
member would have received had he
Salary Death Benefit: one or she been retired on an Service-
month of member’s compensation connected Disability at the time of
earnable for each full year of death

Service Credit (not to exceed six
months of compensation)

Non-Service Connected

Lump-sum payment of member’s 60% of disability retirement allowance
accumulated contributions deceased member would have
received had he or she been retired
Salary Death Benefit: one on an Non-service Connected
month of member’'s compensation Disability* at the time of death

earnable for each full year of Service
Credit (not to exceed six months of
compensation)

Deferred Member
Lump-sum payment of member’s accumulated
contributions

*In order for the survivor to be eligible for the Optional Death Allowance following a non-service connected death, the
member must have been eligible for a retirement in the event of a non-service connected disability.

NON-SERVICE CONNECTED DISABILITY

A non-service connected disability means a member’s permanent iliness or injury did not arise from his or her
employment. Members who have five or more years of retirement service credit and qualify for a non-service connected
disability retirement will receive the service retirement allowance to which the member is entitled, or one-third of your
annual Final Average Salary, whichever is greater.

In the event of a non-service connected disability event, members who have less than five years of service may take a
refund of their contributions and accrued interest, or keep the funds in their account until they are eligible for a deferred
retirement allowance (age 70), but they cannot receive a monthly disability allowance.

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA 94520
Phone: 925-521-3960 e www.cccera.org
Page 2 of 2



w>\ Dime“siu“al Click hare o visw in browser. Meetlnq Date
04/24/19

Agenda Item
#10a.

Dimensional Fund Advisors Cordially
Invites You to Aftend Our

ANNUAL INSTITUTIONAL
SYMPOSIUM

The Sympasium will bring together institutional investors,

researchers, and practitioners to discuss new research,
exchange ideas on investment trends, and tackle industry
challenges.

MAY 6-8, 2019

Dimensional Fund Advisors
1515 South Tryon Street
Charlofte, NC 28203

LEARN MORE & REGISTER

Our annual gathering of some of the world's foremost investment professionals is designed =0 attendees will
get the moest from their time together. The sessions will provide an opportunity fo interact with leading
academics and Dimensional executives as they present on current research, investment implementation, and
Dimensional strategies. This year's program includes sessions with leading academics and investment
professionals including Eugene Fama, Kenneth French, Robert Merion, Robert Novy-Marx and Gerard O'Reilly.
Audience pariicipation is encouraged during the formal sessions. The event also includes a panel discussion

featuring C10= from several leading institutions.

Join us in building a community of engaged invesiment professionals committed to advanced education and

networking.

> 8
Eugene Fama Kenneth French Robert Merton
Robert R. McCommick Distinguished Roth Family Distinguished School of Management
Service Professor of Finance st the Professor of Finance at the Distinguished Professor of Finance
University of Chicago Booth School Tuck School of Business, at Massachusetts Insfitute of
of Business., Director and Dartrmouth College and Director, Technology. John and hathy
Consultant st Dimensional, and Consultant, and Co-Chair of MeArthiur University Professor
Mobel Louraate Investment Research Comimittee at Emeritus at Harvard

Dimensiona University, Resident Scientist at

Dimensional Holdings Inc., and

MNobel Lauresis

For more information or should you have any guestions, please contact Institutional Events

at InstEvents@dimensional.com or (512) 306-4630.


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#10a.



AG ANGELO

d GORDON

CELEBRATIMNG 30 YEARS

ANGELO GORDON Meeting Date
04/24/19

2019 INVESTOR CONFERENCE Agenda Item
& DINNER RECEPTION #10b.

MAY 15,2019 | PIER SIXTY AT CHELSEA PIERS, NYC

RSVP b

We are delighted to invite you to the 2019 Angelo Gordon Investor Conference on Wednesday, May 15,
2019 at Pier Sixty on Mew York's Chelsea Piers.

Cwr one-day conference seeks to provide atiendees with access to Angelo Gordon's deeply experienced
portfolio managers and investment teams sharing their views and insights into the global market

environment and the current landscape for credit and real estate investing.

[Morming sessions will feature in-depth discussions of key market themes and developments that are
impacting investment opportunities across the spectrum. In the afternoon, participants can choose
between Credit and Real Estate breakouts to gain deeper insight into Angelo Gordon strategies and

funds.

At the conclusion of the conference, all participants are invited to join us for a Dinner Reception at The
Lighthouse, a unigue waterfront venue next door to the conference venue, to celebrate Angelo Gordon's

30th anniversary year.
Further agenda details will be released as we get nearer to the conference.

Please RSVP by April 24, 2019

RSVP

If you have any guestions in the meantime, please contact the AG Events team

We hope to see you in May.

AG Events



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#10b.


sshedd
Text Box

sshedd
Text Box

sshedd
Text Box


Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#10c.

DBL INVESTORS

DOUBLE BOTTOM LINE VENTURE CAPITAL

DBL Investors | & Il Annual Meeting and Dinner

Wednesday, June 19t in San Francisco

Final details provided to those who RSVP.


sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#10c.



Meeting Date
04/24/19

SACRS

REGISTER

MODERN INVESTMENT
THEORY & PRACTICE

for Retirement Systems

SACRS PUBLIC PENSION
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2019

Berkeley
July 22-24, 2019



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date
04/24/19
Agenda Item
#10d.



Program Schedule’

Much has changed in finance in the last 50 years; this three-day program will bring you to the frontier of current
investment theory and practice. The program is presented on the beautiful and dynamic campus of UC Berkeley and

is taught by the world renowned Finance faculty from UC Berkeley's Haas School of Business.

MONDAY
July 22, 2019

Registration and Breakfast
Claremont Hotel

» Lobby Lounge
7:00am — 8:00am

8:00am
Depart Hotel to
UC Berkeley

Bus leaves at 8:15am
» Haas, S480 Classroom

Long Term Planning:
How Predictable are
Asset Returns?

9:00am — 10:30am

10:30am
Break, Group Photo

The Role of Fixed Income in
Pension Portfolio Strategy

11:00am - 12:30pm

12:30pm - 1:30pm

Lunch

Advanced Portfolio Analysis
with Risk Factors

1:30pm - 3:00pm

3:00pm
Break

Asset Allocation Case:
Investing in a Volatile World

3:30pm - 5:00pm

Daily Synthesis and Adjourn
5:00pm - 5:15pm

Reception at
Claremont Hotel
5:30pm - 6:30pm

» Lanai Room

TUESDAY
July 23, 2019

Breakfast
Claremont Hotel

» Lobby Lounge
7:00am — 8:00am

8:00am
Depart Hotel to
UC Berkeley

Bus leaves at 8:15am
» Haas, S480 Classroom

Real Estate in Pension
Portfolio Strategy

9:00am - 10:30am

10:30am
Break

Private Equity Case: How to
Structure the Investment

11:00am - 12:30pm

12:30pm - 1:30pm

Lunch

Pension Fund Accounting:
How to value Liabilities?

1:30pm - 3:00pm

3:00pm
Break

The Rise of Defined
Contribution Plans:
What You Need to Know

3:30pm - 5:00pm

Daily Synthesis and Adjourn
5:00pm - 5:15pm

Reception at
Claremont Hotel
5:30pm - 6:30pm

» Lanai Room

I 2 SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | UC Berkeley Executive Education

WEDNESDAY
July 24, 2019

Breakfast
Claremont Hotel

» Lobby Lounge
7:00am - 8:00am

8:00am
Depart Hotel to
UC Berkeley

Bus leaves at 8:15am
» Haas, S480 Classroom

Fiduciary Duties: What is New?
9:00am - 10:30am

10:30am
Break

ESG: Reporting and Returns
11:00am - 12:30pm

12:30pm - 1:30pm

Lunch

Asset Allocation Exercise
1:30pm - 3:00pm

3:00pm
Break

Becoming a More Effective Leader
3:30pm - 4:30pm

Program Wrap up and
Certificate Distribution

4:30pm - 5:00pm

Final Evaluations/Certificates
5:00pm - 5:15pm

Adjourn and Depart to Hotel
5:15pm

* AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE



Exceptional Educational Opportunity
SACRS Public Pension Investment
Management Program 2019

Are you ready for an immersive, profoundly impactful learning experience? Here's your
chance, as you join fellow public pension trustees and retirement staff for SACRS" Public
Pension Investment Management Program 2019, taking place July 22—24. Entitled
"Modern Investment Theory and Practice for Retirement Systems,” the program is
presented in partnership with the UC Berkeley Executive Education at the Haas School
of Business. This exclusive three day program is designed for SACRS trustees and staff
that aspire to better understand current investment theory and practice.

The SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program blends the expertise of the
University of California, Berkeley-Haas School of Business's distinguished faculty with a
network of industry experts to teach the fundamentals of public pension management.
As the spotlight on public pensions grows hotter, trustees and staff are increasingly
challenged to grapple with alternative investments, policy and governance changes, cost
pressures, and much more. After completing this program, attendees will understand the
larger context and history of public pension funds and will have enhanced skills and
knowledge to improve decision-making.

Over the course of the three day program, attendees will have the opportunity to
explore the predictability of asset returns, review the role of fixed income in the pension
portfolio, take a look at how real estate fits into the pension portfolio mix, delve into
private equity’'s new landscape, study the new math of hedge funds, and more. For the
complete program see the facing page.

Located in one of the most stimulating business environments in the world, the Berkeley
campus is at the intersection of business and academia. Berkeley-Haas is renowned for
developing innovative business leaders—individuals who redefine the business landscape
by putting new ideas into action in all areas of their organizations.

This is such a rich opportunity for extended learning and presented so conveniently
in a concise package, maximizing your time and effort. Education is the cornerstone
of SACRS" mission. The UC Berkeley Executive Education staff along with the SACRS
Affiliate team is committed to the continual development and delivery of content that is
current, innovative, results-driven, and responds to the needs of public pension trustees
and staff. Attendees in this program will not only gain new insight and knowledge, but
also will add to the core strengths of our organization—the range of expertise and the
diversity of perspective found in our public pension community.

We urge you to consider participating.

Sincerely,

Do Miestllister

Dan McAllister

SACRS President, San Diego County
Treasurer-Tax Collector and

San Diego County Employees Retirement
Association Trustee

/42£%mzjyfﬁké%¢m¢

Sulema H. Peterson
SACRS Administrator

Invesco

WELLINGTON
MANAGEMENT®

,
Verus”’

/DWS

== EatonVance
W Invesiment Mansgers

)~ PARAMETRIC
William 3]{11'/’
< CenterSauare
Y PATHWAY

AMERICAN
REALTY ADVISORS

PETITUTHIMAL CAPTAL PAMAGEMENT

LORD ABBETT”?«

SAEW

UC Berkeley Executive Education | SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019



UC Berkeley Faculty Biographies

GREGORY LABLANC

has been a
lecturer at UC Berkeley since
2004, teaching courses in Fi-
nance, Accounting, Law, and
Strategy in the Haas School, the
Law School (Boalt Hall) and the
department of Economics. Prior
to joining the Berkeley faculty, he
studied Economics, Business, and Law at the Whar-
ton School of the University of Pennsylvania, George
Mason University Law School, Duke Law School, and
Berkeley Law (Boalt Hall). He has previously taught
Finance, Management, Law and Economics at the
Wharton School, Duke University and the University
of Virginia and has been a consultant in the fields of
IP litigation and competitive intelligence. His re-
search focuses on the impact of tax policy on orga-
nizational design, capital formation, and innovation.
He has received several teaching awards and has
previously been involved in executive education pro-
grams at the Wharton School and Darden School.

JOHN O’'BRIEN

is Adjunct Pro-
fessor and Academic Advisor to
the Master’'s in Financial Engi-
neering (MFE) program at the
Haas School of Business. Prior to
joining Haas in 2000, Mr. O'Brien
was Managing Director at Credit
Suisse Asset Management re-
sponsible for the performance measurement and
risk management functions.

Berkeley

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

Prior to Credit Suisse, Mr. O'Brien was co-founder,
Chairman and CEO of Leland O'Brien Rubinstein
(LOR) Associates, and Chairman of the Capital Mar-
ket Fund, and the S&P 500 SuperTrust — the first ex-
change traded fund (ETF). Prior to LOR, Mr. O'Brien
co-founded Wilshire Associates (originally operated
as O'Brien Associates), and co-developed the Wilshire
5000 common stock index (originally named and
published as the O'Brien 5000 Index).

Mr. O'Brien has received various awards, includ-
ing the Financial Analyst's Graham and Dodd Scroll
Award, the Matthew R. McArthur Award from the In-
vestment Management Consultants Association for
lifetime contributions to investment consulting. Mr.
O'Brien was named among Fortune Magazine's ten
Businessmen of the Year in 1987. Mr. O'Brien holds
a S.B. in economics from MIT, and an M.S. in opera-
tions research from UCLA. He served as a Lieutenant
in the United States Air Force.

I 4 SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | UC Berkeley Executive Education



Instructor Biographies

THOMAS GILBERT

graduated
from the Finance Ph.D. Pro-
gram at the Haas School of
Business in May 2008. Thom-
as is currently an Assistant
Professor of Finance and Busi-
ness Economics at the Mi-
chael G. Foster School of
Business, University of Washington. His research
lies in the area of information aggregation and the
role of macroeconomic announcements on stock
prices. Since 2003, he has taught parts of the Cer-
tified Investment Management Analyst program
(CIMA®) and the Berkeley Finance Series within
the Finance Executive Programs at the Haas
School of Business. He has also taught in the Un-
dergraduate, Full-Time MBA, and Evening & Week-
end MBA programs at Haas, for which he won the
Best Graduate Student Instructor Award in 2005,
2006, and 2007. He holds a Masters in Finance
from U.C. Berkeley and a Masters in Physics from
Imperial College (United Kingdom).

GRAHAM SCHMIDT,

Cheiron

(Associ-
ate- SOA, Member-AAA, Fel-
low-CCA) served as the Senior
Vice President of EFI Actuaries
for ten years before joining
Cheiron as a consulting actu-
ary upon the merger of EFI
and Cheiron in 2013. Graham
is a frequent speaker at public employer confer-
ences, on topics including actuarial funding poli-
cies, asset-liability management and GASB-related
issues. In recent years, he has spoken at national
meetings sponsored by NCPERS, the Society of
Actuaries, the Academy of Actuaries and other re-
gional organizations, such as SACRS and CALA-
PRS.

Graham is the SACRS-appointed representative
to the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP),
and is also a member of the Academy of Actuaries
Public Plans Subcommittee and the Conference
of Consulting Actuaries Public Plans Committee,
the primary actuarial committees dealing with
public sector retirement issues in the US.

SACRS Team

BENJAMIN LAZARUS,

Parametric

joined the firm
in 2004*. He is responsible for
developing, coordinating, and
executing the business devel-
opment and client services
plan for Parametric unique
family of products with em-
phasis on the Western region
of the United States and Canada. In addition, Ben
works on developing and managing new partner-
ships for Parametric and has presented on the use
of derivatives at different industry events. From
2015 to 2016, he was the Senior Vice President of
US Sales at Nuveen Investments in Minneapolis,
Minnesota. Ben earned a B.A. in Psychology from
the University of California, San Diego and an MBA
in Marketing and Strategic Management from the
University of Minnesota. He is a CFA® charter-
holder and a member of the CFA Society of Min-
nesota. *Reflects the year employee was hired by
The Clifton Group, which was acquired by Para-
metric Portfolio Associates® LLC on December
31, 2012.

TERI NOBLE,
Pathway

joined Pathway in
2017 and is a senior vice presi-
dent in the California office.
She is responsible for client
servicing and business devel-
opment in the United States.

Prior to joining Pathway, Ms.
Noble served as senior vice
president, client portfolio manager, for American
Realty Advisors, and before that, she served as
senior vice president at BNY ConvergEx. At both
firms, she focused on managing and cultivat-
ing consultant and institutional relationships. Ms.
Noble earned a BA from the University of Califor-
nia, Davis, and an MBA from St. Mary’'s College of
California and holds Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (FINRA) Series 7, 63, and 65 licenses. She
is involved in several national and regional organi-
zations and serves as an affiliate committee mem-
ber of the State Association of County Retirement
Systems (SACRS) and as a committee member
of Women in Institutional Investments Network
(WHIN).

UC Berkeley Executive Education | SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019



SACRS Team (ontinued

DELIA M. ROGES,

Invesco

., Invescois a
member of the Invesco US In-
stitutional Sales and Service
Team. As managing director,
she is responsible for relation-
ship management and new
business generation for in-
stitutional investors in public
funds in the western United States. Ms. Roges has
been in the institutional investment management
business since 1991

Prior to joining Invesco in 2011, she was a senior
member of a boutique investment banking and
private placement firm focused on securing capi-
tal for private equity and real estate general part-
nerships. She served previously as a Senior Vice
President at Trust Company of the West where she
was responsible for advising institutional clients
and developing product solutions for new busi-
ness development. Ms. Roges serves on the Board
of Regents to Loyola Marymount University and
on the Board of Visitors at the School of Educa-
tion at LMU. She earned an MBA at the University
of Southern California and a Bachelors in Business
Administration from Loyola Marymount University.

KRISTIN V. SHOFNER,
Fidelity Institutional Asset Mgmt.

is Senior
Vice President, Business De-
velopment at Fidelity Institu-
tional Asset Mgmt. In this role,
she leads the development of
relationships with public pen-
sion plans.

Prior to joining Fidelity in
2013, Kristin was a Director of Institutional Sales
and Marketing at Lord Abbett & Co, Inc since June
2003. Her previous positions include serving as a
manager of Institutional Sales and Client Services
from 2000 to 2003 and as a manager research
associate from 1998 to 2000 at Asset Strategy
Consulting/InvestorForce, Inc. She has been in the
industry since 1998. Kristin earned her bachelor of
arts degree in history and sociology from the Uni-
versity of California at Santa Barbara.

EDWARD J. HOFFMAN,

Verus

brings over 20
years of experience to his cli-
ents, providing strategic in-
vestment advice to ensure
that clients meet their long-
term investment objectives.
He serves as lead consultant
to both public and Taft-Hart-

ley benefits plans.

Before joining Verus (previously known as Wurts
& Associates) in 2011, Mr. Hoffman served institu-
tional clients at Legg Mason and Prudential. In ad-
dition to his client service responsibilities at Legg
Mason, he served on the asset management divi-
sion operating committee and Legg Mason Funds
valuation committee, led corporate development
initiatives including several related to the 2005
acquisition of Citigroup’s asset management divi-
sion, and managed a variety of product develop-
ment initiatives. Today, his work in risk-based ad-
visory services provides an additional and valuable
perspective to his non-discretionary clients.

Mr. Hoffman earned a bachelor of science (BS)
in industrial management with college and uni-
versity honors from Carnegie Mellon University,
where he earned membership into Beta Gamma
Sigma and Mortar Board honor societies. He
earned a master’'s degree in business administra-
tion (MBA) from the Harvard Business School. He
has earned the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)
designation and is certified as a Financial Risk
Manager (FRM). He is also a member of the CFA
Society of Los Angeles and the Global Associa-
tion of Risk Professionals (GARP).

— Sharon Naramore,
Contra Costa County Employees
Retirement Association

SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | UC Berkeley Executive Education




“Good content, worth your time.”

— Ben Lazarus, Parametric

UC Berkeley Executive Education | SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | 7




The strength of the Berkeley-Haas School of Business is expressed in its motto, ‘Leading through
Innovation.” Successful Retirement Plan Managers recognize innovation as an opportunity to maximize
the creation of value. This program focuses on individual, team, and organizational levels of innovative
potential.

The Public Pension Investment Management Program is carefully designed to give participants the
tools, knowledge and networks they need to master their particular challenges. Bringing perspective
from their own Retirement Plans to the program, and exposed to that of their peers, participants have
the opportunity to further define and develop their knowledge and objectives under the guidance of
the same faculty who teach in Berkeley-Haas's renowned Masters of Financial Engineering program,
including top finance experts John O'Brien, Thomas Gilbert and Greg LeBlanc.

SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | UC Berkeley Executive Education



| Registration Form

ATTENDEE INFORMATION

| PLEASE COMPLETE ONE REGISTRATION PER ATTENDEE AND RETURN TO SACRS.

| Name:

(Print exactly for name badge)

| Organization: Position Title:

| Address (No P.O. Boxes Please):

| City/State/Zip:

| Business Telephone: Fax:

| Home Telephone: Email address:

| List any special needs you may require during your stay:

| (Dietary, Handicap Accessible, etc.)

| Emergency Contact Name: Emergency Phone:

Arrival Date: Departure Date:
| KING DOUBLE BED
| CREDIT CARD BILL ME

| SEND INVOICE TO THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUAL

Name:

Address (No P.O. Boxes Please):

City/State/Zip:

Telephone: Fax:

| Type of Member: Name of County or Organization:
| Principal Activity of the Organization (e.g. Retirement, Marketing, Consulting, Non-Profit):

| Organization Type: Other Government Non-Profit Public Private



Program Information

Program
Registration

Registration online at sacrs.org
JULY 22-24, 2019

All program activities will take place on the campus
of UC Berkeley Executive Education. The host
hotel is the Claremont Club & Spa, a Fairmont
Hotel. Price for the SACRS Investment Management
Program is $2500 per person. Registration fees
cover registration, training materials, meals (break-
fast, lunch and light receptions) and daily trans-
portation to and from the Hotel Claremont Club
& Spa/UC Berkeley. Hotel accommodations are

separate (see page 11).

PROGRAM LOCATION
UC Berkeley Executive Education
2220 Piedmont Ave., Berkeley, CA 94720-1900

In order to receive a refund, you must cancel
your registration in writing by July 1, 2019. After
July 1, 2019, no refunds will be permitted.

Register early by visiting sacrs.org. To submit
your registration, complete the enclosed
form and:

MAIL TO: SACRS
C/O Sulema Peterson
1415 L Street, Suite 1000

Sacramento, CA 95814
OR E-MAIL TO: sulema@sacrs.org

OR VISIT: sacrs.org and submit online

SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019 | UC Berkeley Executive Education



Hotel
Accommodations

Claremont Club & Spa, a Fairmont Hotel
41 Tunnel Road
Berkeley, CA 94705

Tel: (510) 843-3000

Accommodations will be made for confirmed
attendeesatthe ClaremontClub & Spa,aFairmont
Hotellocated just minutes away from UC Berkeley
in the beautiful Berkeley Hills. Shuttle service
between the hotel and UC Berkeley will be
provided. SACRS room rate is $289 per room
(not including tax). Overnight parking is avail-
able at $20.00 per day per vehicle. Addition-
ally, the hotel charges guests a $29.00 (plus tax)
resort fee per room/per day. This fee is to cover
use of the computers and internet in the business
center, high speed internet access in guest room,
access to the private club & fitness center and
all fitness classes, local calls, newspaper delivery
and in-room coffee.

Program Information

Cancellation with no penalties is 72 hours prior
to arrival. All hotel reservations will be made
through SACRS. Please do not call the hotel
directly to make reservations. To reserve your
hotel accommodations, contact Sulema H. Peterson,
SACRS Administrator at the following:

sulema@sacrs.org or (916) 441-1850.

An informal and collegial atmosphere de-
velops at the SACRS UC Berkeley Program.
Program faculty and participants enjoy lunch-
time meals together, when topics from daily
discussions are often reinforced, vetted and
simplified. During the evening, participants
share dinner together as a group, taking in
Berkeley's local restaurants within walking
distance from the hotel.

UC Berkeley Executive Education | SACRS Public Pension Investment Management Program 2019

11



VO ‘'OLNIWVIOVS
G8T ON LIwyd3d

OHO'SYOVS

058T-Th (9T6)

aivd 1856 VD ‘OLNIWVIOVS
3OVISOd SN

000T 3LINS L3FHLS T GTPT

SWZLSAS INJWIALLAE ALNNOD
F#O NOILVIDOSSYV 3LViS

SSY1D LSHIA

uol1eoNP4 9AIIND9X \Aw_wvtmm N

6102 ‘v2-2z Aine




	Agenda
	Item 3
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 10



